
-1-

CITY OF ONTARIO 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

AGENDA 

August 19, 2019

 All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department
located in City Hall at 303 East “B” St., Ontario, CA  91764.

MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 1:30 PM IN ONTARIO CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
LOCATED AT 303 East “B” St. 

Scott Ochoa, City Manager 
Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Development Agency 
John P. Andrews, Executive Director, Economic Development  
Kevin Shear, Building Official 
Cathy Wahlstrom, Planning Director  
Khoi Do, City Engineer 
Chief Derek Williams, Police Department 
Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department 
Scott Burton, Utilities General Manager 
Julie Bjork, Executive Director, Housing and Neighborhood Preservation 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Citizens wishing to address the Development Advisory Board on any matter that is not on the 
agenda may do so at this time.  Please state your name and address clearly for the record and 
limit your remarks to five minutes. 

Please note that while the Development Advisory Board values your comments, the members 
cannot respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the forthcoming 
agenda. 



 
 

-2- 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 
For each of the items listed below the public will be provided an opportunity to speak.  After a staff 
report is provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing.  At that time the applicant will be 
allowed five (5) minutes to make a presentation on the case.  Members of the public will then be allowed 
five (5) minutes each to speak.  The Development Advisory Board may ask the speakers questions 
relative to the case and the testimony provided.  The question period will not count against your time 
limit.  After all persons have spoken, the applicant will be allowed three minutes to summarize or rebut 
any public testimony.  The chairperson will then close the public hearing portion of the hearing and 
deliberate the matter. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
A. MINUTES APPROVAL 
 

Development Advisory Board Minutes of July 15, 2019, approved as written. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS  

 
B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE TRACT MAP REVIEW 

FOR FILE NO. PMTT18-002: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT18-002 / TTM 
20157) to subdivide 81.35 acres of land into 6 lots and 5 lettered lots for residential, public 
streets, landscape neighborhood edges, and common open space purposes, for properties 
generally located at the southeast corner of Mill Creek Avenue and Old Edison Road, 
within PA-1 (RD-7), PA-2 (RD-4), PA-3 (RD-8), and PA-4 (RD-6) of the Esperanza 
Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in 
conjunction with File No. PSP05-002, an Environmental Impact Report for which the 
Esperanza Specific Plan (SCH No. 2002061047) was previously adopted by the City 
Council on January 16, 2007. This application introduces no new significant environmental 
impacts, and all previously-adopted mitigation measures are a condition of project 
approval. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and 
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). 
(APNs: 0218-252-07, 0218-252-08 and 0218-252-09) submitted by RWT Preserve 
Holdings, LLC. Planning Commission action is required. 

   
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary use of previous EIR 
      

2. File No. PMTT18-002 (TM 20157) 
 

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE TRACT MAP REVIEW 
FOR FILE NOS. PMTT18-003, PMTT18-004, AND PMTT18-005: A request for the 
following Tentative Tract Map entitlements: 1) File No. PMTT18-003 (TTM 20158) to 
subdivide 15.41 acres of land into 31 lots and 15 lettered lots; 2) File No. PMTT18-004 
(TTM 20159) to subdivide 13.94 acres of land into 15 lots and 5 lettered lots; and 3) File 



 
 

-3- 

No. PMTT18-005 (TTM 20160) to subdivide 22.84 acres of land into 113 lots and 32 
lettered lots for residential and public streets, landscape neighborhood edges and common 
open space purposes, generally located at the southeast corner of Mill Creek Avenue and 
Old Edison Road, within PA-1 (RD-7), PA-2 (RD-4), PA-3 (RD-8), and PA-4 (RD-6) of 
the Esperanza Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this project were previously 
reviewed in conjunction with File No. PSP05-002, an Environmental Impact Report for 
which the Esperanza Specific Plan (SCH No. 2002061047) was previously adopted by the 
City Council on January 16, 2007. This application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts, and all previously-adopted mitigation measures are a condition of 
project approval. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of 
Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the 
policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(ALUCP). (APNs: 0218-252-07, 0218-252-08 and 0218-252-09) submitted by RWT 
Preserve Holdings, LLC. Planning Commission action is required. 

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – use of previous EIR  
 

2. File No. PMTT18-003 (TM 20158)  
 

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 

3.   File No. PMTT18-004 (TM 20159)  
 

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 

4.   File No. PMTT18-005 (TM 20160)  
 

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 
D. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR 

FILE NO. PDEV17-012: A Development Plan to remodel an existing Chevron Gas 
Station that includes the construction of a new 1,879 square foot convenience store and a 
630 square foot automated carwash facility on 0.35 acres of land located at 1425 East 
Fourth Street, within the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district. Staff has 
determined that the project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill 
Development Projects) of the CEQA guidelines. The proposed project is located within the 
Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be 
consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan. (APN: 0108-381-24) submitted by St. Mary & St. Michael, Inc. 

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines § 15332  
    
 
 



 
 

-4- 

2. File No. PDEV17-012 (Development Plan)  
 
        Motion to Approve / Deny 
  
E. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR 

FILE NO. PDEV18-043: A Development Plan to construct a 51,555 square foot industrial 
building on 2.05 acres of land located at 426 South Palmetto Avenue, within the IL (Light 
Industrial) zoning district. Staff has determined that the project is categorically exempt 
from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 
Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA guidelines. The 
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International 
Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the 
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan; (APNs: 1011-193-04 and 
1011-193-03) submitted by State Street Ontario OZ Properties, LLC. Planning 
Commission action is required. 

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines § 15332  
    

2. File No. PDEV18-043 (Development Plan)  
 
Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 

 
F. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR 

FILE NO. PDEV19-007: A Development Plan to construct a 14,656-square foot industrial 
building on 0.84 acres of land located at 1166 South Mildred Avenue, within the IG 
(General Industrial) zoning district. Staff has determined that the project is categorically 
exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA 
guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and 
criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (APN: 0113-351-
09) submitted by MCI Properties, Inc. 

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines § 15332  
    

2. File No. PDEV19-007 (Development Plan)  
 
Motion to Approve/Deny 

 
 
If you wish to appeal a decision of the Development Advisory Board, you must do so within ten 
(10) days of the Development Advisory Board action. Please contact the Planning Department 
for information regarding the appeal process. 
 
 





CITY OF ONTARIO 

Development Advisory Board 

Minutes 

July 15, 2019

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Rudy Zeledon, acting Chairman, Planning Department  
Kevin Shear, Building Department  
Jesus Plasencia, Engineering Department 
Paul Ehrman, Fire Department  
Joe De Sousa, Housing and Neighborhood Preservation  
Ahmed Aly, Municipal Utilities Company  
Emily Hernandez, Police Department  

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 

Charity Hernandez, Economic Development 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 

Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Planning Department 
Antonio Alejos, Engineering Department 
Luis Batres, Planning Department 
Gwen Berendsen, Planning Department 
Denny Chen, Planning Department 
Maureen Duran, Planning Department 
Lorena Mejia, Planning Department 
Charles Mercier, Planning Department 
Miguel Sotomayor, Engineering Department 
Mai Thao, Planning Department 
Derrick Womble, Development Administration 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

No one responded from the audience. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Motion to approve the minutes of the June 17, 2019, meeting of the
Development Advisory Board was made by Mr. De Sousa;  seconded  by Mr.  Shear; and  approved
unanimously by those present (7-0).

Item A - 1 of 6



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes – July 15, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 
B.   ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO.      
     PDEV18-038: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV18-038) to construct a 952 square foot addition to       

an existing 3,892 square foot fast food restaurant (McDonald’s) on 0.9 acre of land, located at 2455 
South Archibald Avenue within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district. The project is 
categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
pursuant to Section 15301 (Class 1, Existing Facilities) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project 
is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and 
found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP).  (APNs: 1011-401-07) submitted by Design UA, Inc. 

 
Representative Robert Preece of Design UA was present and agreed to the conditions of approval.  
There were no questions or concerns from the board.  

 
Motion to approve File No. PDEV18-038 subject to conditions was made by Mr. Shear; seconded 
by Mr. De Sousa; and approved unanimously by those present (7-0). 
 

C.  ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, TENTATIVE TRACT MAP, DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
AND VARIANCE REVIEW FOR FILE NOS. PMTT17-004, PDEV17-015 AND PVAR17-004: 
A request for certain entitlements that include: 1) A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT17-
004/TT18373) to subdivide 1.42 acres of land into a single parcel for condominium purposes; 2) a 
Development Plan (File No. PDEV17-015) to construct 17 multi-family residential units; and 3) a 
Variance (File No. PVAR17-004) to reduce the required building side yard setback from 10 feet to 5 
feet,  reduce the building separation requirements for garage to garage from 30 feet to 26 feet, and 
dwelling front to front from 30 feet to 23 feet. The project is located at 920 South Cypress Avenue 
within the MDR18 zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15305 (Class 5, Minor Alterations 
in Land Use) and Section 15332 (Class 32, Infill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The 
proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was 
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). (APN: 1011-401-07) submitted by SKG Pacific Enterprises, 
Inc.  

 
Representative Ray Allard of Allard Engineering was present and agreed to the conditions of 
approval.  There were no questions or concerns from the board.  
 
Motion recommending approval of File Nos. PVAR17-004, PMTT17-004, PDEV17-015 subject 
to conditions to the Planning Commission was made by Mr. Shear; seconded by De Sousa; and 
approved unanimously by those present (7-0). 
 

D. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW FOR 
 FILE NO. PMTT18-010: A Tentative Parcel Map (File No. PMTT18-010, TPM 20087) to 
 subdivide 17.92 acres of land into two parcels, for property located at 4900 East Fourth Street, 
 within the Commercial/Office land use district of the California Commerce Center North/Ontario 
 Gateway Plaza/Wagner Properties (Ontario Mills) Specific Plan. The project is categorically  exempt 
 from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 
 15315 (Class 15: Minor Land Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines.  The proposed project is located 
 within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International airport, and was evaluated and found 
 to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 

Item A - 2 of 6



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes – July 15, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 
 Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). (APN: 0238-014-05) submitted by Retail Properties of America 
 Inc. Planning Commission action is required. 

 
Representative Steve Phillips was present and agreed to the conditions of approval.  There were no 
questions or concerns from the board.  

 
Motion recommending approval of File No. PMTT18-010 subject to conditions to the Planning 
Commission was made by Mr. Shear; seconded by Mr. De Sousa; and approved unanimously by 
those present (7-0). 
 

E.  ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT & DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO. 
PDEV18-039:  A Development Plan (File No. PDEV18-039) to construct a 136,342 square foot single 
story retail building (Costco Business Center) on 10.9 acres of land, within the Mixed-Use land use 
designation of the Ontario Gateway Specific Plan, located on the south side of Guasti Road, 
approximately 500 east of Haven Avenue.  Staff is recommending the adoption of an Addendum to 
The Ontario Plan (File No. PGPA06-001) Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 
2008101140) certified by City Council on January 27, 2010. This application is consistent with the 
previously adopted EIR and introduces no new significant environmental impacts. All previously 
adopted mitigation measures shall be a condition of project approval. The proposed project is located 
within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be 
consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility 
Plan (ALUCP). (APN’s: 210-212-56 & 210-212-57) submitted by Prime A Investments, LLC.  
Planning Commission action is required. 

 
Representative Sean Asmus of Prime Healthcare was present.  Mr. Zeledon asked if there were 
any questions.  Mr. Asmus referred to a condition that carries into Item F and asked if they can 
address it at this time.  Mr. Zeledon agreed.  Mr. Asmus stated that the conditions may prohibit 
them from keeping their schedule and asked if they can extend the time or push the condition for 
certificate of occupancy.  Mr. Zeledon asked Mr. Asmus to confirm which condition he was 
referring to.  Mr. Asmus stated they would be processing the lot line division and would like to 
get approval but not recorded until they were close to closing.  Mr. Zeledon stated they could 
amend the Planning Department condition 2.2, page 71 of 109, to read the CC&Rs prepared for 
the project shall be recorded prior to building occupancy.  Mr. Asmus agreed.   
 
Mr. Zeledon asked if there were other questions at which time Mr. Michael Okuma of Costco 
asked if they can strike section B of condition 2.12, which is asking for a property owners’ 
association.  Mr. Okuma stated since there were going to be only two parties, it would be easier 
to have it as one agreement rather than setting up an association.  Mr. Asmus clarified there was 
already an association in place and it would be redundant to have a sub-association.  Mr. Zeledon 
asked if there would be reciprocal ingress/egress on both parties.   Mr. Asmus stated there would 
be and this would be taken care of by way of the CC&Rs.  Mr. Zeledon stated it should not be 
stricken as it is important to have something in place as reassurance there is not only common 
ingress/egress but also maintenance and responsibilities.  Mr. Zeledon stated while it doesn’t have 
to be specifically an association, it should be demonstrated that there would be responsibilities of 
maintenance and some common agreement.  Mr. Asmus asked if they could be addressed in the 
CC&R document at which time Mr. Zeledon stated it could.  Mr. Zeledon also stated these were 
typical conditions when there is more than one property owner.   
 

Item A - 3 of 6



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes – July 15, 2019 
Page 4 
 
 

Mr. Aly asked if the parcels are being incorporated into the current property association.  Mr. 
Asmus stated they are already in the current property association, and the minor land division is 
going to change the area of the two parcels and they will still be inside of the association and 
subject to the existing CC&Rs.  Mr. Aly asked if the new CC&Rs would be incorporated into the 
existing CC&Rs.  Mr. Asmus stated there has not been a conclusion reached as to how they would 
be integrated.  Mr. Aly stated the sewer service for Costco’s property runs through the other 
property.  Mr. Asmus confirmed this and also confirmed they would be supplying an easement 
for that. Mr. Aly stated this should reserve Costco’s right to access the pipe, and maintenance 
would be established.  Mr. Asmus stated they are working on documents to have a development 
agreement to construct that run of the sewer and tie it into a manhole for future connection.  He 
added the maintenance of that will be Costco’s. Mr. Aly asked if that would be included in the 
CC&Rs at which time Mr. Asmus stated it would.  Mr. Zeledon stated since the wording is 
straightforward, they would leave the condition as is.  Mr. Okuma and Mr. Asmus agreed to this.   
  
Mr. Okuma then referred to landscape conditions on page 101 of 109.  He asked that condition 
number one be revised to reinsert the bollards.  He stated this is an Edison requirement and also a 
safety issue.  Mr. Zeledon stated that these are far enough from the street and asked if it was still 
necessary to have them in place.  Mr. Okuma stated it was necessary.  Mr. Zeledon agreed to have 
the condition state the placement of bollards will be subject to review and approval.  Mr. Okuma 
agreed. 
 
Mr. Zeledon asked the board if they had any questions at which time Mr. Aly stated he wanted to 
highlight the Solid Waste condition as it is an important item for the Utilities Department.  He 
also stated there is an integrated waste management report that will be worked out during plan 
check.  
 
There were no other comments or concerns.  

 
Motion recommending approval of File No. PDEV18-039 subject to conditions to the Planning 
Commission was made by Mr. Plasencia; seconded by Mr. Ahmed; and approved unanimously by 
those present (7-0). 
 

F.   ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND   CONDITIONAL   USE       
     PERMIT REVIEW FOR FILE NO. PDEV18-040 & PCUP18-041: A Development Plan (File No.   

PDEV18-040) to construct three retail buildings totaling 19,000 square feet, in conjunction with a 
Conditional Use Permit (File No. PCUP18-041) to establish drive-thru facilities on two buildings 
(Building A & Building C), on 4.3 acres of land located at the southeast corner of Haven Avenue and 
Guasti Road, within the Mixed-Use land use designation of the Ontario Gateway Specific Plan. The 
environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with (Specific Plan 
Amendment: File No. PSPA17-001), for which an Addendum to The Ontario Plan Environmental 
Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 2008101140) was prepared, and was adopted by City Council 
on January 27, 2010. This application introduces no new significant environmental impacts, and all 
previously-adopted mitigation measures are a condition of project approval. The proposed project is 
located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, and was evaluated and found 
to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) (APN: 210-212-57) submitted by Prime A Investments, LLC. 
Planning Commission action is required. 

 
Representative Sean Asmus of Prime Healthcare was present and referred to the condition 
previously discussed in Item E.  Mr. Zeledon stated item 2.13 on page 44 can be revised to read the 

Item A - 4 of 6



Development Advisory Board 
Minutes – July 15, 2019 
Page 5 
 
 

CC&Rs prepared for the project shall be recorded prior to building occupancy.  Mr. Asmus agreed 
to this revision.   
 
Mr. Asmus said he had additional comments regarding section 2.18 which stated outdoor patio 
fencing will not be permitted.  Mr. Asmus’ concern was that this condition was broad and can 
possibly be a safety issue.  He asked that it not be removed but perhaps be revised to read it would 
be subject to approval.  Mr. Zeledon agreed this can be revised to read the outdoor patio fencing 
shall be subject to Planning Department review and approval.  Mr. Asmus agreed to this revision.  
 
Mr. Zeledon asked if there were any other questions and concerns.  Mr. Asmus stated he had a 
question for Municipal Utilities regarding the condition referring to the trash receptical.  Mr. Asmus 
asked for clarification on this condition.  Mr. Aly stated it was referring to the orientation of the 
bins.  Mr. Aly clarified this condition stating it was referring to the number of bins the driver would 
have to move to gain access to the trash bins.  Mr. Asmus had no further questions.   

 
 Mr. Zeledon asked if there were any other questions or concerns at which time there were not.  
 
 Motion recommending approval of File Nos. PCUP18-041 AND PDEV18-040 subject to 

conditions to the Planning Commission was made by Mr. De Sousa; seconded by Mr. Shear; and 
approved unanimously by those present (7-0). 
 
 

G.    ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NO.   
PDEV18-041: A Development Plan (File No. PDEV18-041) to construct one industrial building 
totaling 178,462 square feet on 7.85 acres of land, located on the southeast corner of Wall Street and 
Wanamaker Avenue at 1155 South Wanamaker Avenue, within the Light Industrial land use district of 
the California Commerce Center Specific Plan. Staff is recommending the adoption of an Addendum 
to The Ontario Plan (File No. PGPA06-001) Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 
2008101140) certified by City Council on January 27, 2010. This application introduces no new 
significant environmental impacts, and all previously-adopted mitigation measures are a condition of 
project approval. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the 
Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP). (APN: 0238-221-36) submitted 
by Bridge Acquisition, LLC. Planning Commission action is required. 

 
Representative Rosendo Solis of Bridge Acquisition was present and agreed to the conditions of 
approval.  There were no questions or conerns from the board.  

 
Motion recommending approval of File No. PDEV18-041 subject to conditions to the Planning 
Commission was made by Mr.  Shear; seconded by Mr. Aly; and approved unanimously by those 
present (7-0). 

Item A - 5 of 6



Item A - 6 of 6



 

Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
August 19, 2019 

 
DECISION NO.: [insert #] 
 
FILE NO.: PMTT18-002 (TT 20157) 
 
DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT18-002 / TTM 20157) to subdivide 81.35 
acres of land into 6 numbered lots and 5 lettered lots for residential, public streets, landscape neighborhood 
edges, and common open space purposes, for properties generally located at the southeast corner of Mill 
Creek Avenue and Old Edison Road, within PA-1 (RD-7), PA-2 (RD-4), PA-3 (RD-8), and PA-4 (RD-6) of 
the Esperanza Specific Plan (APNs: 0218-252-07, 0218-252-08 and 0218-252-09); submitted by RWT 
Preserve Holdings, LLC. 
 
 
 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 
 

RWT PRESERVE HOLDINGS, LLC, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application 
requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PMTT18-002 (TT 20157), as described in the subject of 
this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 
 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 81.35 acres of land located at the 
southeast corner of Mill Creek Avenue and Old Edison Road, and is depicted in Exhibit A—Aerial 
Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan land 
uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site Vacant/Dairy Farm 
(Pietersma Property) 

(LDR) Low Density 
Residential (2 – 5 
DU/AC), (MDR) 
Medium Density 

Residential (11.1 – 25 
DU/AC) & (OS-R) 

Open Space – 
Recreation (Parkland) 

Esperanza Specific 
Plan 

Planning Areas – PA-1 
(RD-7), PA-2 (RD-4), 
PA-3 (RD-8), and a 

portion of PA-4 (RD-6) 

North Vacant 
(MU) Mixed Use & 

(OS-NR) Open Space 
– Non Recreation 

Rich Haven Specific 
Plan 

Mixed Use District PA 
8A, 8B, 9A, & 9B 
(Mixed-Use Stand 
Alone Residential 

Overlay) 

South Vacant/ Mass Graded 

(LDR) Low Density 
Residential (2 – 5 

DU/AC) & (PS) Public 
School 

Esperanza Specific 
Plan 

Planning Areas – PA-5 
(RD-5), PA-6 (RD-4), 
PA-7 (RD-1), PA-8 

(RD-2), PA-9 (RD-1), 
PA-10 (RD-3, PA-11 
(School), portion of 

PA-4 (RD-6) 

Item B - 1 of 45



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-002 (TT 20157) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

East City of Eastvale 
Commercial Retail, 

Business Park, Light 
Industrial 

The Goodman 
Commerce Center 

Specific Plan 

PA1 (Commercial 
Retail), PA4 

(Commercial, Retail, 
Business Park, 
Hospital), PA3 

(Commercial, Retail, 
Business Park, 

Hospital, Industrial) 

West Dairy Farm 

(LDR) Low Density 
Residential (2 – 5 

DU/AC) (OS-NR) Open 
Space – Non 
Recreation 

Specific Plan 
(Agricultural Overlay) N/A 

 
(2) Project Description:  

 
(a) Background — The Applicant is requesting Tentative Tract Map approval to 

subdivide 81.35 gross acres of land into 6 numbered lots and 5 lettered lots for residential, public streets, 
landscaped neighborhood edges, and common open space purposes. The Tentative Map will serve as the 
project’s “A” Map, the initial map that will subdivide the parcel into smaller parcels to facilitate future land 
uses and backbone infrastructure improvements (major streets, sewer, water and storm drain facilities). 
The “A” Map will also facilitate subsequent tentative maps, referred to as “B” Maps, which will further 
subdivide the same parcel of land. The applicant has submitted three “B” Maps (File Nos. PMTT18-003 (TT 
20158), PMTT18-004 (TT 20159) and PMTT18-005 (TT 20160)) that are being processed concurrently with 
the “A” Map for the western half of the project site. Additionally, a Development Agreement (File No. PDA19-
002) was filed concurrently with the “A” Map to facilitate infrastructure improvements to serve the site, which 
will be completed in two phases. Phase 1 includes the western half of the site and facilitates the 
development of the three “B” Maps that were submitted concurrently. Phase 2 will develop the eastern half 
of the site and require subsequent “B” Maps to be submitted and approved.  
 
The proposed Tentative Map (A Map) will primarily allow for residential land uses and accommodate three 
product types, including Row Town Homes, Motorcourt Townhomes, and 6-Pack Courtyard Homes, for a 
total of 432 units, which are described below:  
 

 PMTT18-003 (TT 20158) Row Townhomes – The Row Townhomes are located on the 
northwest portion of the project site and includes Lots 1 and 2, for a total of 174 units 

 
 PMTT18-004 (TT 20159) Motorcourt Townhomes – The Motorcourt Townhomes are centrally 

located on the western half of the project site and includes lots 3 and 4, for a total of 145 units 
and 

 
 PMTT18-005 (TT 20160) 6-Pack Courtyard Homes – The 6-Pack Courtyard Homes are located 

at the northeast corner of Mill Creek Avenue and Chatham Street, and includes lot 5, for a total 
of 113 units 

 
Lot 6 is 29.98 acres in area, encompassing the eastern half of the project site, and will require the submittal 
and approval of subsequent “B” Maps. The 5 lettered lots will accommodate two parks (Lots A and B), the 
HOA maintained landscaped edge along Mill Creek Avenue (Lots C and D), and the neighborhood edge 
along Hamner Avenue (Lot E).  
 

Item B - 2 of 45



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-002 (TT 20157) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 3 

(b) Density — Proposed Phase 1 of the Tentative Tract Map (“A” Map) will establish 
a total of 432 residential units and provides an overall project density of 12.91 dwelling units per acre on 
the western half of the project site. TOP’s (Policy Plan) land use designation for Phase 1 is LDR (Low 
Density Residential - 2 to 5 DU/AC) and MDR (Medium Density Residential - 11.1 to 25 DU/AC). For 
developments that encompass multiple properties and contain more than one land use designation, the 
maximum number of units permitted for the development may be spread over the entire site, thereby 
allowing the blending of the residential densities. In calculating the overall project density, the TOP EIR 
assumptions for the LDR and MDR land use districts were taken into account for an average maximum 
allowable density of 13.25 dwelling units per acre. The Tentative Map provides a density of 12.91 dwelling 
units per acre, which is consistent with the Esperanza Specific Plan and TOP Policy Plan. 
 

(c) Site Access/Circulation — The project site will have access from both Mill Creek 
Avenue and Hamner Avenue, which runs north/south, and access from Eucalyptus Avenue, which run 
east/west. The Tentative Tract Map also provides for the construction of interior tract streets and private 
lanes for the western half of the site, which  will provide access to future residential development to the 
north, and to existing residential development to the south, of the project site. The Tentative Map is 
consistent with TOP Policy CD2-2, which promotes the importance of neighborhood connectivity through 
local street patterns and neighborhood edges as a way to unify neighborhoods. The Tentative Map provides 
for the construction and improvement of the following streets: 
 

 Mill Creek Avenue will be fully constructed on the east side along the project frontage. The 
street improvements include an 18-foot wide neighborhood edge, 5-foot wide sidewalk and 7-
foot wide landscaped parkway, and a 32-foot wide street with curb/gutter improvements on the 
east side. An 18-foot wide travel lane and 5-foot shoulder will be constructed along the west 
side. The western portion of Mill Creek right-of-way improvements shall be completed with 
future development. 

 
 To provide access to the proposed tract, the project requires Mill Creek Avenue street 

improvements to be completed north and south of the project site. The northern (between Old 
Edison Road and Ontario Ranch Road) and southern (between Eucalyptus Avenue and 
Bellegrave Avenue) Mill Creek street improvements include half street improvements on the 
northbound lane and an 18-foot wide travel lane with 5-foot shoulder for the southbound lane. 

 
 Hamner Avenue will be required to provide connections to underground utilities and construct 

last lane street improvements along the project’s street frontage. 
 
 Clifton Avenue will be fully constructed, which consist of curb-to-curb street improvements. The 

street will include two northbound lanes, a 12-foot wide striped median, and two southbound 
lanes, totaling 66 feet, which will extend from Eucalyptus Avenue to Old Edison Road.  

 
(d) Parking — A parking plan was completed for the proposed Tract Map to 

demonstrate that sufficient parking is proposed throughout the project site. The Tentative Map’s proposed 
product types would require a total of 1,062 parking spaces, in which 864 of those parking spaces would 
be provided within a garage. The parking plan demonstrates that a total of 1,772 spaces will be provided, 
exceeding the minimum requirements by 710 parking spaces. The additional parking spaces are provided 
throughout the site as on-street parking, driveways, and within the private drive aisles. The parking plan 
demonstrates that there will be an average of 4.1 parking spaces per unit, which should be more than 
adequate to accommodate both resident and visitor parking. As the proposed tract develops, parking will 
continue to be analyzed for each product type as part of the Development Plan entitlement process.   

 
(e) Open Space — The proposed Tentative Tract Map will facilitate the construction 

of a neighborhood park, sidewalks, parkways, and open space areas for the western portion of the tract. 
TOP Policy PR1-1 requires new developments to provide a minimum of 2 acres of Private Park per 1,000 
residents. The proposed project is required to provide 2.91 acres of parkland to meet the minimum TOP 

Item B - 3 of 45



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-002 (TT 20157) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

private park requirement. To satisfy the park requirement, the applicant is constructing a central 
neighborhood park totaling 3.4 acres, comprised of a 0.66-acre primary recreation center park on the 
northern half of the site, a 0.33-acre garden park along the western portion of the site, and 0.27-acre pocket 
park located along the southern portion of the site, for a total of 4.67 acres of land, which exceeds TOP’s 
minimum private park requirements. The pedestrian circulation system provides connectivity to the parks, 
residential neighborhood, and surrounding communities. Future park designs and amenities will be 
addressed as part of the Development Plan entitlement process, which will require consistency with 
Esperanza Specific Plan. 

 
(f) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) — As a Condition of Approval, 

staff has required that CC&Rs be prepared and recorded with the Final Map. The CC&Rs will outline the 
maintenance responsibilities for the open space areas, recreation amenities, drive aisles, utilities, and 
upkeep of the entire site to ensure the on-going maintenance of the common areas and facilities. 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
the Esperanza Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-002) Environmental Impact Report (SCH # 2002061047) 
certified by the City Council on February 6, 2007, and this Application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

Item B - 4 of 45



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-002 (TT 20157) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on August 19, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous Certified EIR and 
supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous Certified EIR 
and supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the 
Esperanza Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-002) Environmental Impact Report (SCH # 2002061047) certified 
by the City Council on February 6, 2007. 
 

(2) The previous Certified EIR contains a complete and accurate reporting of the 
environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous Certified EIR was completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines 
promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

(4) The previous Certified EIR reflects the independent judgment of the Planning Commission; 
and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the previous Certified EIR, and all mitigation measures previously adopted with the 
Certified EIR, are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Certified EIR is not required for the Project, as the 
Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require major revisions 
to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase 
in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 

Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of 
new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified 
significant effects; and 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the Certified EIR was 
certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

Item B - 5 of 45



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-002 (TT 20157) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the Certified 
EIR; or 

 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the Certified EIR; or 
 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but which 
the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one of the 
properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) 
of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the proposed project is consistent with the number 
of dwelling units (432) and density (9.8 DU/AC) specified in the Available Land Inventory. Per the Available 
Land Inventory, the Esperanza Specific Plan is required to provide 1,410 dwelling units with an overall 
density of 5-21 DU/AC. 

 
SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 

Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is consistent with the goals, policies, 
plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components 
of The Ontario Plan, and applicable area and specific plans, and planned unit developments. The 
proposed Tentative Tract Map is located within the LDR (Low Density Residential - 2 to 5 DU/AC) and MDR 
(Medium Density Residential - 11.1 to 25 DU/AC) land use districts of the Policy Plan Land Use Map and 
PA-1 (RD-7), PA-2 (RD-4), PA-3 (RD-8), and PA-4 (RD-6) of the Esperanza Specific Plan. The proposed 
subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General 

Item B - 6 of 45



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-002 (TT 20157) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to providing 
“a spectrum of housing types and price ranges that match the jobs in the City, and that make it possible for 
people to live and work in Ontario and maintain a quality of life” (Goal LU1). Furthermore, the project will 
promote the City’s policy to “incorporate a variety of land uses and building types that contribute to a 
complete community where residents at all stages of life, employers, workers, and visitors, have a wide 
spectrum of choices of where they can live, work, shop, and recreate within Ontario” (Policy LU1-6 
Complete Community). 
 

(2) The design or improvement of the proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is consistent 
with the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable specific plans and planned unit 
developments. The proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is located within the LDR (Low Density 
Residential - 2 to 5 DU/AC) and MDR (Medium Density Residential - 11.1 to 25 DU/AC) land use districts 
of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the PA-1 (RD-7), PA-2 (RD-4), PA-3 (RD-8), and PA-4 (RD-6) land 
use districts of the Esperanza Specific Plan. The proposed design or improvement of the subdivision is 
consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City 
Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to providing “[a] high level 
of design quality resulting in public spaces, streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, 
functional and distinct” (Goal CD2). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to “create distinct 
residential neighborhoods that are functional, have a sense of community, emphasize livability and social 
interaction, and are uniquely identifiable places through such elements as: 
 

 A pattern of smaller, walkable blocks that promote access, activity and safety; 
 Variable setbacks and parcel sizes to accommodate a diversity of housing types; 
 Traffic calming measures to slow traffic and promote walkability while maintaining acceptable 

fire protection and traffic flows; 
 Floor plans that encourage views onto the street and de-emphasize the visual and physical 

dominance of garages (introducing the front porch as the “outdoor living room”), as appropriate; 
and 

 Landscaped parkways, with sidewalks separated from the curb.” (Policy CD2-2 Neighborhood 
Design). 

 
(3) The site is physically suitable for the type of development proposed. The project site 

meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of PA-1 (RD-7), PA-2 (RD-4), PA-3 (RD-8), and PA-4 (RD-6) 
of the Esperanza Specific Plan, and is physically suitable for the type of residential development proposed 
in terms of zoning, land use and development activity proposed, and existing and proposed site conditions. 
 

(4) The site is physically suitable for the density/intensity of development proposed. 
The project site is proposed for residential development at a density of 12.91 DUs/acre. The project site 
meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of PA-1 (RD-7), PA-2 (RD-4), PA-3 (RD-8), and PA-4 (RD-6) 
of the Esperanza Specific Plan, and is physically suitable for this proposed density / intensity of 
development. 
 

(5) The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or 
their habitat. The project site is not located in an area that has been identified as containing species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or 
regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, nor 
does the site contain any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community, and no wetland habitat is 
present on site; therefore, the design of the subdivision, or improvements proposed thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or their 
habitat. 
 

Item B - 7 of 45



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-002 (TT 20157) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 8 

(6) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, are not likely to 
cause serious public health problems. The design of the proposed subdivision, and the related 
infrastructure improvements existing or proposed on the project site, are not likely to cause serious public 
health problems, as The project is not anticipated to involve the transport, use, or disposal of hazardous 
materials during either construction or project implementation, include the use of hazardous materials or 
volatile fuels, nor are there any known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within close proximity 
to the subject site that use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a significant hazard 
to visitors or occupants to the project site. 
 

(7) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, will not conflict 
with easements acquired by the public at large for access through, or use of property within, the 
proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision has provided for all necessary public easements and 
dedications for access through, or use of property within, the proposed subdivision. Furthermore, all such 
public easements and dedications have been designed pursuant to: (a) the requirements of the Policy Plan 
component of The Ontario Plan and applicable area plans; (b) applicable specific plans or planned unit 
developments; (c) applicable provisions of the City of Ontario Development Code; (d) applicable master 
plans and design guidelines of the City; and (e) applicable Standard Drawings of the City. 
 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of August 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item B - 8 of 45



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-002 (TT 20157) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

 Page 9 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 

  

M
IL

L 
C

R
EE

K
 A

VE
N

U
E Project Site 

 
 
 
 
 

Item B - 9 of 45



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-002 (TT 20157) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit B—Tentative Tract Map 20157 

 

Item B - 10 of 45



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-002 (TT 20157) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

 Page 11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item B - 11 of 45



Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 

File No: PMTT18-002 (TT 20157) 

Related Files: PMTT18-003 (TT 20158), PMTT18-004 (TT 20159), PMTT18-005 (TT 20160), 

Project Description: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT18-002/TTM 20157) to subdivide 81.35 
acres of land into 6 numbered lots and 5 lettered lots for residential, public streets, landscape neighborhood 
edges, and common open space purposes, for properties generally located at the southeast corner of Mill 
Creek Avenue and Old Edison Road, within PA-1 (RD-7), PA-2 (RD-4), PA-3 (RD-8), and PA-4 (RD-6) land 
use districts of the Esperanza Specific Plan (APNs: 0218-252-07, 0218-252-08 and 0218-252-09); 
submitted by RWT Preserve Holdings, LLC. 

Prepared By: Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Associate Planner 
Phone: 909.395.2418 (direct) 
Email: jaguilo@ontarioca.gov 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 

1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 

2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 

2.1 Time Limits. 

(a) Tentative Parcel/Tract Map approval shall become null and void 2 years following
the effective date of application approval, unless the final parcel/tract map has been recorded, or a time 
extension has been approved by the Planning Commission pursuant to Development Code Section 
2.02.025 (Time Limits and Extensions). This Permit does not supersede any individual time limits specified 
herein for performance of specific conditions or improvements. 

2.2 Subdivision Map. 

(a) The Final Tract Map shall be in conformance with the approved Tentative Tract
Map on file with the City. Variations rom the approved Tentative Tract Map may be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Department. A substantial variation from the approved Tentative Tract/Parcel Map may 
require review and approval by the Planning Commission, as determined by the Planning Director. 

(b) Tentative Tract Map approval shall be subject to all conditions, requirements and
recommendations from all other departments/agencies provided on the attached reports/memorandums. 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item B - 12 of 45



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT18-002 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

(c) Pursuant to California Government Section 66474.9, the subdivider agrees that it 
will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Ontario or its agents, officers and employees from any 
claim, action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set 
aside, void or annul any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission 
or other authorized board or officer of this subdivision, which action is brought within the time period 
provided for in Government Code Section 66499.37. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the subdivider 
of any such claim, action or proceeding and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.3 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.4 Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs)/Mutual Access and Maintenance 
Agreements. 
 

(a) CC&Rs shall be prepared for the Project and shall be recorded prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. 
 

(b) The CC&Rs shall be in a form and contain provisions satisfactory to the City. The 
articles of incorporation for the property owners association and the CC&Rs shall be reviewed and approved 
by the City. 
 

(c) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels. 
 

(d) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels, and common 
maintenance of: 
 

(i) Landscaping and irrigation systems within common areas; 
(ii) Landscaping and irrigation systems within parkways adjacent to the 

project site, including that portion of any public highway right-of-way between the property line or right-of-
way boundary line and the curb line and also the area enclosed within the curb lines of a median divider 
(Ontario Municipal Code Section 7-3.03), pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 5-22-02; 

(iii) Shared parking facilities and access drives; and 
(iv) Utility and drainage easements. 

 
(e) CC&Rs shall include authorization for the City’s local law enforcement officers to 

enforce City and State traffic and penal codes within the project area. 
 

(f) The CC&Rs shall grant the City of Ontario the right of enforcement of the CC&R 
provisions. 
 

(g) A specific methodology/procedure shall be established within the CC&Rs for 
enforcement of its provisions by the City of Ontario, if adequate maintenance of the development does not 

Item B - 13 of 45



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT18-002 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
occur, such as, but not limited to, provisions that would grant the City the right of access to correct 
maintenance issues and assess the property owners association for all costs incurred. 
 

2.5 Disclosure Statements. 
 

(a) A copy of the Public Report from the Department of Real Estate, prepared for the 
subdivision pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 11000 et seq., shall be provided to each 
prospective buyer of the residential units and shall include a statement to the effect that: 
 

(i) This tract is subject to noise from the Ontario International Airport and may 
be more severely impacted in the future. 

(ii) Some of the property adjacent to this tract is zoned for agricultural uses 
and there could be fly, odor, or related problems due to the proximity of animals. 

(iii) The area south of Riverside Drive lies within the San Bernardino County 
Agricultural Preserve. Dairies currently existing in that area are likely to remain for the foreseeable future. 

(iv) This tract is part of a Landscape Maintenance District. The homeowner(s) 
will be assessed through their property taxes for the continuing maintenance of the district. 
 

2.6 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction 
with the Esperanza Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-002) Environmental Impact Report (SCH # 2002061047) 
certified by the City Council on February 6, 2007. This application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts. The City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed. The previously adopted mitigation measures shall 
be a condition of project approval, and are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.7 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.8 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

Item B - 14 of 45



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT18-002 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 

 
2.9 Off-Site Subdivision Signs. The City Council has authorized the Baldy View Chapter of the 

Building Industry Association to manage a standardized off-site directional sign program on a non-profit 
basis. The program uses uniform sign structures and individual identification and directional signs for 
residential development. No other off-site signing is authorized. (For additional information, contact the 
Baldy View Chapter BIA at (909) 945-1884. 
 

2.10 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) All applicable conditions of approval of Development Agreement (File No. PDA19-
002) shall apply to this tract. 
 

(b) All applicable conditions of approval of the Esperanza Specific Plan shall apply to 
this tract. 
 

(c) Tentative Tract Map approval shall not be final and complete until such time that 
File No. PSPA19-005 (related Minor Specific Plan Amendment) has been approved by the Zoning 
Administrator. 
 

Item B - 15 of 45



Item B - 16 of 45



Item B - 17 of 45



Item B - 18 of 45



Item B - 19 of 45



Item B - 20 of 45



Item B - 21 of 45



Item B - 22 of 45



Item B - 23 of 45



Item B - 24 of 45



Item B - 25 of 45



Item B - 26 of 45



Item B - 27 of 45



Item B - 28 of 45



Item B - 29 of 45



Item B - 30 of 45



Item B - 31 of 45



Item B - 32 of 45



Item B - 33 of 45



Item B - 34 of 45



Item B - 35 of 45



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

DAB CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 10/17/18 
Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2237 

 D.A.B. File No.:                                          Related Files: 
 PMTT18-002 Rev 1 

Case Planner: 
Jeanie Irene Aguilo 

Project Name and Location:  
Esperanza Planning Area 1 - 4 
TM 20157, E Mill Creek Ave, S Old Edison Rd 
 Applicant/Representative: 
Fusco Engineering/ RWT Preserve Holdings. 
3161 Michelson Dr. ste. 425 
Irvine, CA 92612 

 

A Tentative Tract Map (dated 9/4/18) has been approved with the consideration that the 
following conditions below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 

A Tentative Tract Map (dated  ) has not been approved. Corrections noted below are 
required prior to DAB approval. 

 For Site and Grading Construction Plans 
1. Show letter lots between the sidewalk and single family residence side yards walls to provide the 

5’ landscape buffer and to separate HOA maintained landscape with recycled water irrigation 
separate from private property potable water irrigation.  

2. Note decorative paving for all motor courts including any lots facing the parking rows aisles. 
3. Note for compaction to not be greater than 85% at landscape areas; all finished grades 1 ½” 

below finished surfaces; landscaped slopes to be max 3:1. 
4. Show infiltrating catch basins with two ¾” dia. holes in bottom set on 12” square of filter fabric 

wrapped gravel, located 5’ or greater from buildings and 24” from sidewalk, add detail.  
5. Show or note transformers shall be located in planter areas, and set back 5’ from paving. 
6. Show or note backflow devices shall be located in planter areas, and set back min 3’ from paving. 
7. Provide a utility clear space 8’ wide in parkways 30’ apart for street trees. Move water meters, 

drain lines, light standards to the minimum spacing to allow space for street trees.  
8. Show light standards 15’ away from required tree locations. 
9. Wall footings shall not restrict landscape; max 12” footing in front of wall with 12” of cover.   
10. Wall openings for drainage overflow shall be max 4” wide. 
11. Provide a solid surface path from driveway to side yard gate for entry and trash bin access. 
12. AC units shall be located in residential side yards, opposite the main back yard access path with 

gate, or a second gate and solid surface path on the opposite side added for access. 
13. Storm water infiltration devices located in landscape areas shall be reviewed and approved by the 

Landscape Planning Division prior to installation. 
14. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees at a rate 

established by resolution of the City Council. Fees are: 
Plan Check—5 or more acres ............................................... $2,326.00 
Inspection—Construction (per phase up to 3 inspections) ....... $278.00 
Inspection—Field - additional...................................................... $83.00 

Once complete you may email an electronic set to: landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

Item B - 36 of 45

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

Airport Influence Area:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection Overflight Notification

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone

FAA Notification Surfaces

Avigation Easement 
Dedication
Recorded Overflight 
Notification

Real Estate Transaction
Disclosure

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

Airport Planner Signature:

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Proposed Structure Height:

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

Airspace Obstruction 
Surfaces

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PMTT18-002 (TT 20157)

NEC Merrill Ave & Mill Creek Ave

0218-252-07 & 08

Vacant

A Tentative Tract Map to subdivide 81.35 acres into 5 numbered lots and 4 lettered
lots

81.35

No

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

Real Estate Disclosure Required.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Jeanie Aguilo

4/13/18

2018-015
N/A

200 FT +

Item B - 37 of 45



CD No.:

PALU No.:

PROJECT CONDITIONS

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 2

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for ONT. The applicant
is required to meet the Real Estate Transaction Disclosure in accordance with California Codes (Business and
Professions Code Section 11010-11024). New residential subdivisions within an Airport Influence Area are required to
file an application for a Public Report consisting of a Notice of Intention (NOI) and a completed questionnaire with the
Department of Real Estate and include the following language within the NOI:

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY: This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is
known as an airport influence area. For that reason, the property may be subject to some of the annoyances or
inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations (for example: noise, vibration, or odors). Individual
sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from person to person. You may wish to consider what airport annoyances,
if any, are associated with the property before you complete your purchase and determine whether they are acceptable
to you.

2018-015

Item B - 38 of 45



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Assistant Planner 
  Planning Department 
 
FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
  Fire Department 
 
DATE:  February 12, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: PMTT18-002  – A Tentative Tract Map (TT 20157) to subdivide 81.35 

acres of land into 6 lots and 4 lettered (commonly-owned) lots generally 
located at the northeast corner of Merrill Avenue and Mill Creek Avenue, 
within Planning Areas 1 and 2 (RD-7 and RD-4) of the Esperanza Specific 
Plan (APNs: 0218-252-07, 0218-252-08 and 0218-252-09). 

 
 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 
 
SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 
 

A. 2013 CBC Type of Construction:  Type V-B wood frame 
 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Non-rated 
 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  Various 
 

D. Number of Stories:  Two Story  
 

E. Total Square Footage:  Various 
 

F. 2013 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):  R-3, U 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item B - 39 of 45



 

2 of 3  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 

1.0 GENERAL 
 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.” 

 
  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings.  
 
2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 
 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide. 
See Standard #B-004.   

 
  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 
turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

 
  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall 

have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   
 

  2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-six 
(26) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all 
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by 
fire department and other emergency services. 
 

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 
 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code, 
Appendix B, is 1500  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 
  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 

spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications. 
 

  3.4 The public water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved 
by the Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to 
assure availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 
 

Item B - 40 of 45

file://///ont-chfs02/Shared/Fire/Fire%20Prevention/Development/DAB%20Comments/www.ontarioca.gov


 

3 of 3  

 

4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 
 

  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with 
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 13 D. All new fire sprinkler systems, 
except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or more 
shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with 
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 
Department, prior to any work being done.   

 
5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 
 

  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 
development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 
debris both on and off the site. 

 
  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 

position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Homes 
that do not front street shall be provided with an address entry sign at the street.  Address 
numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of the Ontario Municipal 
Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  
 

  5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the 
California Building Code and the California Fire Code. 

 
  5.5  All residential chimneys shall be equipped with an approved spark arrester meeting the 

requirements of the California Building Code. 
 

 

Item B - 41 of 45



Item B - 42 of 45



Item B - 43 of 45



X
X

Broadband Operations      Anna Vaca        Sr. Systems Analyst       02/16/2018

Item B - 44 of 45



Item B - 45 of 45



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
August 19, 2019 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PMTT18-003 (TT 20158) 

DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT18-003/TTM 20158) to subdivide 15.41 
acres of land into 31 numbered lots and 15 lettered lots for residential, public streets, private lanes, 
landscape neighborhood edges, and common open space purposes, for properties generally located at the 
southeast corner of Mill Creek Avenue and Old Edison Road, within PA-1 (RD-7/Row Townhomes) of the 
Esperanza Specific Plan (APNs: 0218-252-07 and 0218-252-08); submitted by RWT Preserve Holdings, 
LLC. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

RWT PRESERVE HOLDINGS, LLC, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application 
requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PMTT18-003 (TT 20158), as described in the subject of 
this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 15.41 acres of land located at southeast
corner of Mill Creek Avenue and Old Edison Road, and is depicted in Exhibit A—Aerial Photograph, 
attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and 
surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site Vacant/Dairy Farm 
(Pietersma Property) 

(LDR) Low Density 
Residential (2 – 5 
DU/AC), (MDR) 
Medium Density 

Residential (11.1 – 25 
DU/AC) & (OS-R) 

Open Space – 
Recreation (Parkland) 

Esperanza Specific 
Plan 

Planning Areas – PA-1 
(RD-7), PA-2 (RD-4), 
PA-3 (RD-8), and a 

portion of PA-4 (RD-6) 

North Vacant 
(MU) Mixed Use & 

(OS-NR) Open Space 
– Non Recreation

Rich Haven Specific 
Plan 

Mixed Use District PA 
8A, 8B, 9A, & 9B 
(Mixed-Use Stand 
Alone Residential 

Overlay) 

South Vacant/ Mass Graded 

(LDR) Low Density 
Residential (2 – 5 

DU/AC) & (PS) Public 
School 

Esperanza Specific 
Plan 

Planning Areas – PA-5 
(RD-5), PA-6 (RD-4), 
PA-7 (RD-1), PA-8 

(RD-2), PA-9 (RD-1), 
PA-10 (RD-3, PA-11 
(School), portion of 

PA-4 (RD-6) 

Item C - 1 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-003 (TT 20158) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

East City of Eastvale 
Commercial Retail, 

Business Park, Light 
Industrial 

The Goodman 
Commerce Center 

Specific Plan 

PA1 (Commercial 
Retail), PA4 

(Commercial, Retail, 
Business Park, 
Hospital), PA3 

(Commercial, Retail, 
Business Park, 

Hospital, Industrial) 

West Dairy Farm 

(LDR) Low Density 
Residential (2 – 5 

DU/AC) (OS-NR) Open 
Space – Non 
Recreation 

Specific Plan 
(Agricultural Overlay) N/A 

 
(2) Project Description: 

 
(a) Background — The Applicant is requesting Tentative Tract Map approval to 

subdivide 15.41 gross acres of land into 31 numbered lots and 15 lettered lots for residential and private 
streets purposes. The Tentative Map is one of three “B” Maps (PMTT18-004 (TT 20159) and PMTT18-005 
(TT 20160)) that were processed concurrently with the related “A” Map (PMTT18-002/TT 20157). The “A” 
Map subdivides the overall project area to facilitate future land uses, and backbone infrastructure 
improvements (major streets, sewer, water and storm drain facilities), and subsequent tentative maps “B” 
Maps further subdivide the same parcel of land into smaller lots to facilitate residential development.   
 
The proposed Tentative Map will further subdivide Lots 1 and 2 of Tract 20157 (A Map) to allow for the 
development of the Row Townhomes product type. The Tentative Map will create 31 numbered lots that 
will allow for the development of 174 residential units, with lot sizes ranging from 7,994 to 13,939 square 
feet. The Esperanza Specific Plan does not specify minimum unit size and minimum lot sizes for this product 
type. 
 

(b) Site Access/Circulation — The project site is located within the related A Map 
Phase 1 improvement area and will have access from Mill Creek Avenue and Hamner Avenue, which runs 
north/south, and Eucalyptus Avenue, which runs east/west. The proposed Tentative Map is consistent with 
TOP Policy CD2-2, which promotes the importance of neighborhood connectivity through local street 
patterns and neighborhood edges as a way to unify neighborhoods.  

 
(c) Parking — A parking plan was completed for the related A Map (Tract 20157) to 

demonstrate that sufficient parking is proposed throughout the project site. The A Map’s proposed product 
types would require a total of 1,062 parking spaces, in which 864 of those parking spaces would be provided 
within a garage. The parking plan demonstrates that a total of 1,772 spaces will be provided, exceeding the 
minimum requirements by 710 parking spaces. The additional parking spaces are provided throughout the 
site as on-street parking, driveways, and within the private drive aisles. The parking plan demonstrates that 
there will be an average of 4.1 parking spaces per unit, which should be more than adequate to 
accommodate both resident and visitor parking. As the proposed tract develops, parking will continue to be 
analyzed for each product type as part of the Development Plan entitlement process. 

 
(d) Open Space — The related A Map (Tract 20157) will facilitate the construction of 

neighborhood parks, sidewalks, parkways, and open space areas within the tract. TOP Policy PR1-1 
requires new developments to provide a minimum of 2 acres of Private Park per 1,000 residents. The A 
Map is required to provide 2.91 acres of parkland to meet the minimum TOP private park requirement. To 

Item C - 2 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-003 (TT 20158) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 3 

satisfy the park requirement, the applicant is constructing a central neighborhood park totaling 3.4 acres of 
land, comprised of a 0.66-acre primary recreation center park on the northern half of the site, a 0.33-acre 
garden park along the western portion of the site, and 0.27-acre pocket park located along the southern 
portion of the site, for a total of 4.67 acres of land, which exceeds the minimum private park requirements. 
The pedestrian circulation system provides connectivity to the parks, residential neighborhood, and the 
surrounding communities. Future park designs and amenities will be addressed as part of the Development 
Plan entitlement process, which will require consistency with Esperanza Specific Plan. 

 
(e) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) — As a Condition of Approval, 

staff has required that CC&Rs be prepared and recorded with the Final Map. The CC&Rs will outline the 
maintenance responsibilities for the open space areas, recreation amenities, drive aisles, utilities, and 
upkeep of the entire site to ensure the on-going maintenance of the common areas and facilities. 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
the Esperanza Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-002) Environmental Impact Report (SCH # 2002061047) 
certified by the City Council on February 6, 2007, and this Application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; 

Item C - 3 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-003 (TT 20158) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

 
WHEREAS, on August 19, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 

Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous Certified EIR and 
supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous Certified EIR 
and supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the 
Esperanza Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-002) Environmental Impact Report (SCH # 2002061047) certified 
by the City Council on February 6, 2007. 
 

(2) The previous Certified EIR contains a complete and accurate reporting of the 
environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous Certified EIR was completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines 
promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

(4) The previous Certified EIR reflects the independent judgment of the Planning Commission; 
and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the previous Certified EIR, and all mitigation measures previously adopted with the 
Certified EIR, are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Certified EIR is not required for the Project, as the 
Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require major revisions 
to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase 
in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 

Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of 
new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified 
significant effects; and 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the Certified EIR was 
certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the Certified 
EIR; or 

 

Item C - 4 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-003 (TT 20158) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 
shown in the Certified EIR; or 

 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but which 
the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one of the 
properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) 
of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the proposed project is consistent with the number 
of dwelling units (174) and density (21 DU/AC) specified in the Available Land Inventory. Per the Available 
Land Inventory, the Esperanza Specific Plan is required to provide 1,410 dwelling units with an overall 
density of 5-21 DU/AC. 

 
SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 

Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is consistent with the goals, policies, 
plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components 
of The Ontario Plan, and applicable area and specific plans, and planned unit developments. The 
proposed Tentative Tract Map is located within the MDR (Medium Density Residential - 11.1 to 25 DU/AC) 
land use districts of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and PA-1 (RD-7 Row Townhomes) of the Esperanza 
Specific Plan. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the 
Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the 
project will contribute to providing “a spectrum of housing types and price ranges that match the jobs in the 
City, and that make it possible for people to live and work in Ontario and maintain a quality of life” (Goal 
LU1). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to “incorporate a variety of land uses and 

Item C - 5 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-003 (TT 20158) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

building types that contribute to a complete community where residents at all stages of life, employers, 
workers, and visitors, have a wide spectrum of choices of where they can live, work, shop, and recreate 
within Ontario” (Policy LU1-6 Complete Community). 
 

(2) The design or improvement of the proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is consistent 
with the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable specific plans and planned unit 
developments. The proposed Tentative Tract Map is located within the MDR (Medium Density Residential 
- 11.1 to 25 DU/AC) land use districts of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and PA-1 (RD-7 Row Townhomes) 
of the Esperanza Specific Plan. The proposed design or improvement of the subdivision is consistent with 
the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to providing “[a] high level of design quality 
resulting in public spaces, streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct” 
(Goal CD2). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to “create distinct residential 
neighborhoods that are functional, have a sense of community, emphasize livability and social interaction, 
and are uniquely identifiable places through such elements as: 
 

 A pattern of smaller, walkable blocks that promote access, activity and safety 
 Variable setbacks and parcel sizes to accommodate a diversity of housing types 
 Traffic calming measures to slow traffic and promote walkability while maintaining acceptable 

fire protection and traffic flows 
 Floor plans that encourage views onto the street and de-emphasize the visual and physical 

dominance of garages (introducing the front porch as the “outdoor living room”), as appropriate 
 Landscaped parkways, with sidewalks separated from the curb.” (Policy CD2-2 Neighborhood 

Design) 
 

(3) The site is physically suitable for the type of development proposed. The project site 
meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of PA-1 (RD-7 Row Townhomes) of the Esperanza Specific 
Plan, and is physically suitable for the type of residential development proposed in terms of zoning, land 
use and development activity proposed, and existing and proposed site conditions. 
 

(4) The site is physically suitable for the density/intensity of development proposed. 
The project site is proposed for residential development at a density of 21 DUs/acre. The project site meets 
the minimum lot area and dimensions of PA-1 (RD-7 Row Townhomes) of the Esperanza Specific Plan, 
and is physically suitable for this proposed density/intensity of development. 
 

(5) The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or 
their habitat. The project site is not located in an area that has been identified as containing species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or 
regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, nor 
does the site contain any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community, and no wetland habitat is 
present on site; therefore, the design of the subdivision, or improvements proposed thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or their 
habitat. 
 

(6) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, are not likely to 
cause serious public health problems. The design of the proposed subdivision, and the related 
infrastructure improvements existing or proposed on the project site, are not likely to cause serious public 
health problems, as The project is not anticipated to involve the transport, use, or disposal of hazardous 
materials during either construction or project implementation, include the use of hazardous materials or 
volatile fuels, nor are there any known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within close proximity 
to the subject site that use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a significant hazard 
to visitors or occupants to the project site. 

Item C - 6 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-003 (TT 20158) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

 
(7) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, will not conflict 

with easements acquired by the public at large for access through, or use of property within, the 
proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision has provided for all necessary public easements and 
dedications for access through, or use of property within, the proposed subdivision. Furthermore, all such 
public easements and dedications have been designed pursuant to: (a) the requirements of the Policy Plan 
component of The Ontario Plan and applicable area plans; (b) applicable specific plans or planned unit 
developments; (c) applicable provisions of the City of Ontario Development Code; (d) applicable master 
plans and design guidelines of the City; and (e) applicable Standard Drawings of the City. 
 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of August 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 

Item C - 7 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-003 (TT 20158) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

 Page 8 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

 
  

Project Site 
 
 
 
 
 

M
IL

L 
C

R
EE

K
 A

VE
N

U
E 

Item C - 8 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-003 (TT 20158) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit B—Tentative Tract Map 20158 

  

Item C - 9 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-003 (TT 20158) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

 Page 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item C - 10 of 116



 
 
Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 
 
File No: PMTT18-003 (TT 20158) 
 
Related Files: PMTT18-002 (TT 20157), PMTT18-004 (TT 20159), PMTT18-005 (TT 20160) 
 
Project Description: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT18-003 / TTM 20158) to subdivide 15.41 
acres of land into 31 numbered lots and 15 lettered lots for residential, public streets, private lanes, 
landscape neighborhood edges, and common open space purposes, for properties generally located at the 
southeast corner of Mill Creek Avenue and Old Edison Road, within PA-1 (RD-7 / Row Townhomes) of the 
Esperanza Specific Plan.  APNs: 0218-252-07 and 0218-252-08; submitted by RWT Preserve Holdings, 
LLC. 
 
Prepared By: Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Associate Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2418 (direct) 
Email: jaguilo@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits 
 

(a) Tentative Tract Map approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless the final tract map has been recorded, or a time extension has 
been approved by the Planning Commission pursuant to Development Code Section 2.02.025 (Time Limits 
and Extensions). This Permit does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein for performance 
of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 Subdivision Map 
 

(a) The Final Tract Map shall be in conformance with the approved Tentative Tract 
Map on file with the City. Variations rom the approved Tentative Tract Map may be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Department. A substantial variation from the approved Tentative Tract Map may require 
review and approval by the Planning Commission, as determined by the Planning Director. 
 

(b) Tentative Tract Map approval shall be subject to all conditions, requirements and 
recommendations from all other departments/agencies provided on the attached reports/memorandums. 
 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item C - 11 of 116



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No. PMTT18-003 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

(c) Pursuant to California Government Section 66474.9, the subdivider agrees that it 
will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Ontario or its agents, officers and employees from any 
claim, action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set 
aside, void or annul any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission 
or other authorized board or officer of this subdivision, which action is brought within the time period 
provided for in Government Code Section 66499.37. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the subdivider 
of any such claim, action or proceeding and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.3 General Requirements - The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.4 Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs)/Mutual Access and Maintenance 
Agreements. 
 

(a) CC&Rs shall be prepared for the Project and shall be recorded prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. 
 

(b) The CC&Rs shall be in a form and contain provisions satisfactory to the City. The 
articles of incorporation for the property owners association and the CC&Rs shall be reviewed and approved 
by the City. 
 

(c) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels. 
 

(d) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels, and common 
maintenance of: 
 

(i) Landscaping and irrigation systems within common areas 
 
(ii) Landscaping and irrigation systems within parkways adjacent to the 

project site, including that portion of any public highway right-of-way between the property line or right-of-
way boundary line and the curb line and also the area enclosed within the curb lines of a median divider 
(Ontario Municipal Code Section 7-3.03), pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 5-22-02 

 
(iii) Shared parking facilities and access drives 
 
(iv) Utility and drainage easements 

 
(e) CC&Rs shall include authorization for the City’s local law enforcement officers to 

enforce City and State traffic and penal codes within the project area. 
 

(f) The CC&Rs shall grant the City of Ontario the right of enforcement of the CC&R 
provisions. 
 

Item C - 12 of 116



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No. PMTT18-003 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

(g) A specific methodology/procedure shall be established within the CC&Rs for 
enforcement of its provisions by the City of Ontario, if adequate maintenance of the development does not 
occur, such as, but not limited to, provisions that would grant the City the right of access to correct 
maintenance issues and assess the property owners association for all costs incurred. 
 

2.5 Disclosure Statements 
 

(a) A copy of the Public Report from the Department of Real Estate, prepared for the 
subdivision pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 11000 et seq., shall be provided to each 
prospective buyer of the residential units and shall include a statement to the effect that: 
 

(i) This tract is subject to noise from the Ontario International Airport and may 
be more severely impacted in the future. 

 
(ii) Some of the property adjacent to this tract is zoned for agricultural uses 

and there could be fly, odor, or related problems due to the proximity of animals. 
 
(iii) The area south of Riverside Drive lies within the San Bernardino County 

Agricultural Preserve. Dairies currently existing in that area are likely to remain for the foreseeable future. 
 
(iv) This tract is part of a Landscape Maintenance District. The homeowner(s) 

will be assessed through their property taxes for the continuing maintenance of the district. 
 

2.6 Environmental Review 
 

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction 
with the Esperanza Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-002) Environmental Impact Report (SCH # 2002061047) 
certified by the City Council on February 6, 2007. This application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts. The City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed. The previously adopted mitigation measures shall 
be a condition of project approval, and are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.7 Indemnification - The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the 
City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.8 Additional Fees 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 

Item C - 13 of 116



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No. PMTT18-003 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.9 Off-Site Subdivision Signs - The City Council has authorized the Baldy View Chapter of the 
Building Industry Association to manage a standardized off-site directional sign program on a non-profit 
basis. The program uses uniform sign structures and individual identification and directional signs for 
residential development. No other off-site signing is authorized. (For additional information, contact the 
Baldy View Chapter BIA at (909) 945-1884. 
 

2.10 Additional Requirements 
 

(a) All applicable conditions of approval of Development Agreement (File No. PDA19-
002) and File No. PMTT18-002 (TT 20157) shall apply to this tract. 
 

(b) All applicable conditions of approval of the Esperanza Specific Plan shall apply to 
this tract. 
 

(c) Tentative Tract Map approval shall not be final and complete until such time that 
File No. PSPA19-005 (related Minor Specific Plan Amendment) has been approved by the Zoning 
Administrator. 
 

(d) The applicant shall contact the Ontario Post Office to determine the size and 
location of mailboxes for this project. The location of the mailboxes shall be submitted to the Planning 
Department for review and approval prior to the issuance of building permits.   
 

(e) The Applicant (Developer) shall be responsible for providing fiber optic cable to 
each home pursuant to City requirements and standards. 

 
 

Item C - 14 of 116



Item C - 15 of 116



Item C - 16 of 116



Item C - 17 of 116



Item C - 18 of 116



Item C - 19 of 116



Item C - 20 of 116



Item C - 21 of 116



Item C - 22 of 116



Item C - 23 of 116



Item C - 24 of 116



Item C - 25 of 116



Item C - 26 of 116



Item C - 27 of 116



Item C - 28 of 116



Item C - 29 of 116



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

DAB CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 10/18/18 
Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2237 

 D.A.B. File No.:                                          Related Files: 
 PMTT18-003 Rev 2 

Case Planner: 
Jeanie Irene Aguilo 

Project Name and Location:  
Esperanza SP Richland Communities TM 20158 Planning Area 1 
Row Town homes East of Mill Creek Ave, South of Old Edison Road  
Applicant/Representative: 
Fusco Engineering  
2858 Inland Empire Blvd. Bldg B 
Ontario, CA 91764 

 

A Tentative Tract Map (dated 9/4/18) has been approved with the consideration that the 
following conditions below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 

A Tentative Tract Map (dated  ) has not been approved. Corrections noted below are 
required prior to DAB approval. 

  
For Site and Grading Construction Plans 

1. Provide a utility clear space 8’ wide in parkways 30’ apart for street trees. On construction plans, 
move water meters, drain lines, to the minimum spacing to allow space for street trees. Show 
light standards 15’ away from required tree locations. 

2. Note decorative paving is required for all motor courts including any lots facing the parking rows 
aisles. 

3. Show on plans step outs at parking spaces adjacent to planters; 12” wide monolithic curb, or 12” 
of compacted DG or pavers adjacent to the 6” curb.  

4. Storm water infiltration devices located in landscape areas shall be reviewed and plans approved 
by the Landscape Planning Division prior to permit issuance. Any storm water devices in 
parkway areas shall not displace street trees. 

5. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees at a rate 
established by resolution of the City Council. Typical fees are: 

Plan Check—5 or more acres ............................................... $2,326.00 
Inspection—Construction (up to 3 inspections) ....................... $278.00 
Inspection—Field - additional...................................................... $83.00 

 
Once items are complete you may email an electronic set to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

 

Item C - 30 of 116

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PMTT18-003 (TT 20158)

NEC Merrill Ave & Mill Creek Ave

0218-252-07 & 08

Vacant

A Tentative Tract Map to subdivide 15.41 acres into 31 numbered lots and 16 lettered
lots

15.41

No

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

Real Estate Disclosure Required.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Jeanie Aguilo

4/13/18

2018-016
N/A

200 FT +

Item C - 31 of 116



CD No.:

PALU No.:

PROJECT CONDITIONS

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 2

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for ONT. The applicant
is required to meet the Real Estate Transaction Disclosure in accordance with California Codes (Business and
Professions Code Section 11010-11024). New residential subdivisions within an Airport Influence Area are required to
file an application for a Public Report consisting of a Notice of Intention (NOI) and a completed questionnaire with the
Department of Real Estate and include the following language within the NOI:

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY: This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is
known as an airport influence area. For that reason, the property may be subject to some of the annoyances or
inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations (for example: noise, vibration, or odors). Individual
sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from person to person. You may wish to consider what airport annoyances,
if any, are associated with the property before you complete your purchase and determine whether they are acceptable
to you.

2018-016

Item C - 32 of 116



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
 

TO:  Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Assistant Planner 

  Planning Department 

 

FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 

  Fire Department 

 

DATE:  February 12, 2018 

 

SUBJECT: PMTT18-003  – A Tentative Tract Map (TT 20158) to subdivide 15.41 

acres of land into 31 lots and 16 lettered (commonly-owned) lots generally 

located on the east side of Mill Creek Avenue, south of Old Edison Road, 

within Planning Area 1 (RD-7/Row Townhomes) of the Esperanza Specific 

Plan (APNs: 0218-252-07 and 0218-252-08). 

 

 
   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 
 
SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 

 

A. 2013 CBC Type of Construction:  Type V-B wood frame 
 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Non-rated 
 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  Various 
 

D. Number of Stories:  Two Story  
 

E. Total Square Footage:  Various 
 

F. 2013 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):  R-3, U 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Item C - 33 of 116



 

2 of 3  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

 

1.0 GENERAL 

 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 

development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.” 

 
  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings.  
 
2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 

 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide. 
See Standard #B-004.   

 
  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 

turning radius per Standard #B-005.   
 

  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall 
have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   

 
  2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-six 

(26) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all 
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by 
fire department and other emergency services. 
 

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 

 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code, 
Appendix B, is 1500  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 
  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 

spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications. 
 

  3.4 The public water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved 
by the Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to 
assure availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 

 

Item C - 34 of 116

file://///ont-chfs02/Shared/Fire/Fire%20Prevention/Development/DAB%20Comments/www.ontarioca.gov


 

3 of 3  

 

4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

 

  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with 
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 13 D. All new fire sprinkler systems, 
except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or more 
shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with 
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 
Department, prior to any work being done.   

 
5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 

 
  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 

development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 
debris both on and off the site. 

 
  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 

position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Homes 
that do not front street shall be provided with an address entry sign at the street.  Address 
numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of the Ontario Municipal 
Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  
 

  5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the 
California Building Code and the California Fire Code. 

 
  5.5  All residential chimneys shall be equipped with an approved spark arrester meeting the 

requirements of the California Building Code. 
 

 

Item C - 35 of 116



X
X

X

Broadband Operations     Anna VAca       Sr. Systems Anayst             02/16/2018

Item C - 36 of 116



Item C - 37 of 116



Item C - 38 of 116



 

 Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
August 19, 2019 

 
DECISION NO.: [insert #] 
 
FILE NO.: PMTT18-004 (TT 20159) 
 
DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT18-004/TTM 20159) to subdivide 13.94 
acres of land into 15 numbered lots and 5 lettered lots residential, public streets, private lanes, landscape 
neighborhood edges, and common open space purposes, for properties generally located at the southeast 
corner of Mill Creek Avenue and Old Edison Road, within PA-1 (RD-8/Motorcourt Townhomes) of the 
Esperanza Specific Plan (APNs: 0218-252-07 and 0218-252-08); submitted by RWT Preserve Holdings, 
LLC. 
 
 
 
 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 
 

RWT PRESERVE HOLDINGS, LLC, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application 
requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PMTT18-004 (TT 20159), as described in the subject of 
this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 
 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 13.94 acres of land located at southeast 
corner of Mill Creek Avenue and Old Edison Road, and is depicted in Exhibit A—Aerial Photograph, 
attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and 
surrounding the project site are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site Vacant/Dairy Farm 
(Pietersma Property) 

(LDR) Low Density 
Residential (2 – 5 
DU/AC), (MDR) 
Medium Density 

Residential (11.1 – 25 
DU/AC) & (OS-R) 

Open Space – 
Recreation (Parkland) 

Esperanza Specific 
Plan 

Planning Areas – PA-1 
(RD-7), PA-2 (RD-4), 
PA-3 (RD-8), and a 

portion of PA-4 (RD-6) 

North Vacant 
(MU) Mixed Use & 

(OS-NR) Open Space 
– Non Recreation 

Rich Haven Specific 
Plan 

Mixed Use District PA 
8A, 8B, 9A, & 9B 
(Mixed-Use Stand 
Alone Residential 

Overlay) 

South Vacant/ Mass Graded 

(LDR) Low Density 
Residential (2 – 5 

DU/AC) & (PS) Public 
School 

Esperanza Specific 
Plan 

Planning Areas – PA-5 
(RD-5), PA-6 (RD-4), 
PA-7 (RD-1), PA-8 

(RD-2), PA-9 (RD-1), 
PA-10 (RD-3, PA-11 
(School), portion of 

PA-4 (RD-6) 

Item C - 39 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-004 (TT 20159) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

East City of Eastvale 
Commercial Retail, 

Business Park, Light 
Industrial 

The Goodman 
Commerce Center 

Specific Plan 

PA1 (Commercial 
Retail), PA4 

(Commercial, Retail, 
Business Park, 
Hospital), PA3 

(Commercial, Retail, 
Business Park, 

Hospital, Industrial) 

West Dairy Farm 

(LDR) Low Density 
Residential (2 – 5 

DU/AC) (OS-NR) Open 
Space – Non 
Recreation 

Specific Plan 
(Agricultural Overlay) N/A 

 
(2) Project Description: 

 
(a) Background — The Applicant is requesting Tentative Tract Map approval to 

subdivide 13.94 gross acres of land into 15 lots and 5 lettered lots for residential and private streets 
purposes. The Tentative Map is one of three “B” Maps (PMTT18-003 (TT 20158) and PMTT18-005 (TT 
20160)) that were processed concurrently with the related “A” Map (PMTT18-002 / TT 20157). The “A” Map 
subdivides the overall project area to facilitate future land uses, backbone infrastructure improvements 
(major streets, sewer, water and storm drain facilities) and subsequent tentative maps “B” Maps further 
subdivide the same parcel of land into smaller lots to facilitate residential development.   

 
The proposed Tentative Map will further subdivide Lots 3 and 4 of Tract 20157 (A Map) to allow for the 
development of the Motorcourt Townhomes product type. The Tentative Map will create 15 numbered lots 
that will allow for the development of 145 residential units, with lot sizes ranging from 16,369 to 26,883 
square feet. The Esperanza Specific Plan does not specify minimum unit size and minimum lot sizes for 
this product type; however, the maximum building coverage allowed for the area is 50 percent, which this 
project meets. 
 

(b) Site Access/Circulation — The project site is located within the related A Map 
Phase 1 improvement area and will have access from Mill Creek Avenue and Hamner Avenue, which runs 
north/south, and Eucalyptus Avenue, which runs east/west. The proposed Tentative Map is consistent with 
TOP Policy CD2-2, which promotes the importance of neighborhood connectivity through local street 
patterns and neighborhood edges as a way to unify neighborhoods. 
 

(c) Parking — A parking plan was completed for the related A Map (Tract 20157) to 
demonstrate that sufficient parking is proposed throughout the project site. The A Map’s proposed product 
types would require a total of 1,062 parking spaces, in which 864 of those parking spaces would be provided 
within a garage. The parking plan demonstrates that a total of 1,772 spaces will be provided, exceeding the 
minimum requirements by 710 parking spaces. The additional parking spaces are provided throughout the 
site as on-street parking, driveways, and within the private drive aisles. The parking plan demonstrates that 
there will be an average of 4.1 parking spaces per unit, which should be more than adequate to 
accommodate both resident and visitor parking. As the proposed tract develops, parking will continue to be 
analyzed for each product type as part of the Development Plan entitlement process. 

 
(d) Open Space — The related A Map (Tract 20157) will facilitate the construction of 

neighborhood parks, sidewalks, parkways, and open space areas within the tract. TOP Policy PR1-1 
requires new developments to provide a minimum of 2 acres of Private Park per 1,000 residents. The A 

Item C - 40 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-004 (TT 20159) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 3 

Map is required to provide 2.91 acres of parkland to meet the minimum TOP private park requirement. To 
satisfy the park requirement, the applicant is constructing a central neighborhood park totaling 3.4 acres of 
land, comprised of a 0.66-acre primary recreation center park on the northern half of the site, a 0.33-acre 
garden park along the western portion of the site, and 0.27-acre pocket park located along the southern 
portion of the site, for a total of 4.67 acres of land, which exceeds the minimum private park requirements. 
The pedestrian circulation system provides connectivity to the parks, residential neighborhood, and the 
surrounding communities. Future park designs and amenities will be addressed as part of the Development 
Plan entitlement process, which will require consistency with Esperanza Specific Plan. 

 
(e) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) — As a Condition of Approval, 

staff has required that CC&Rs be prepared and recorded with the Final Map. The CC&Rs will outline the 
maintenance responsibilities for the open space areas, recreation amenities, drive aisles, utilities, and 
upkeep of the entire site to ensure the on-going maintenance of the common areas and facilities. 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
the Esperanza Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-002) Environmental Impact Report (SCH # 2002061047) 
certified by the City Council on February 6, 2007, and this Application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

Item C - 41 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-004 (TT 20159) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on August 19, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous Certified EIR and 
supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous Certified EIR 
and supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the 
Esperanza Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-002) Environmental Impact Report (SCH # 2002061047) certified 
by the City Council on February 6, 2007. 
 

(2) The previous Certified EIR contains a complete and accurate reporting of the 
environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous Certified EIR was completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines 
promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

(4) The previous Certified EIR reflects the independent judgment of the Planning Commission; 
and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the previous Certified EIR, and all mitigation measures previously adopted with the 
Certified EIR, are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Certified EIR is not required for the Project, as the 
Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require major revisions 
to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase 
in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 

Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of 
new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified 
significant effects; and 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the Certified EIR was 
certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

Item C - 42 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-004 (TT 20159) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the Certified 
EIR; or 

 
(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 

shown in the Certified EIR; or 
 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but which 
the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one of the 
properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) 
of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the proposed project is consistent with the number 
of dwelling units (145) and density (16.82 DU/AC) specified in the Available Land Inventory. Per the 
Available Land Inventory, the Esperanza Specific Plan is required to provide 1,410 dwelling units with an 
overall density of 5-21 DU/AC. 

 
SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 

Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is consistent with the goals, policies, 
plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components 
of The Ontario Plan, and applicable area and specific plans, and planned unit developments. The 
proposed Tentative Tract Map is located within the MDR (Medium Density Residential - 11.1 to 25 DU/AC) 
land use districts of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and PA-1 (RD-8/Motorcourt Townhomes) of the 
Esperanza Specific Plan. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits 
of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as 

Item C - 43 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-004 (TT 20159) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

the project will contribute to providing “a spectrum of housing types and price ranges that match the jobs in 
the City, and that make it possible for people to live and work in Ontario and maintain a quality of life” (Goal 
LU1). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to “incorporate a variety of land uses and 
building types that contribute to a complete community where residents at all stages of life, employers, 
workers, and visitors, have a wide spectrum of choices of where they can live, work, shop, and recreate 
within Ontario” (Policy LU1-6 Complete Community). 
 

(2) The design or improvement of the proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is consistent 
with the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable specific plans and planned unit 
developments. The proposed Tentative Tract Map is located within the MDR (Medium Density Residential 
- 11.1 to 25 DU/AC) land use districts of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and PA-1 (RD-8/Motorcourt 
Townhomes) of the Esperanza Specific Plan. The proposed design or improvement of the subdivision is 
consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City 
Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to providing “[a] high level 
of design quality resulting in public spaces, streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, 
functional and distinct” (Goal CD2). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to “create distinct 
residential neighborhoods that are functional, have a sense of community, emphasize livability and social 
interaction, and are uniquely identifiable places through such elements as: 
 

 A pattern of smaller, walkable blocks that promote access, activity and safety 
 Variable setbacks and parcel sizes to accommodate a diversity of housing types 
 Traffic calming measures to slow traffic and promote walkability while maintaining 

acceptable fire protection and traffic flows 
 Floor plans that encourage views onto the street and de-emphasize the visual and 

physical dominance of garages (introducing the front porch as the “outdoor living room”), as appropriate 
 Landscaped parkways, with sidewalks separated from the curb.” (Policy CD2-2 

Neighborhood Design) 
 

(3) The site is physically suitable for the type of development proposed. The Esperanza 
Specific Plan minimum unit size and minimum lot sizes are not specified for this product type, however the 
maximum building coverage of the area is 50 percent in which this project meets. The project site meets 
the intent of the minimum lot area and dimensions of PA-1 (RD-8/Motorcourt Townhomes) of the Esperanza 
Specific Plan, and is physically suitable for the type of residential development proposed in terms of zoning, 
land use and development activity proposed, and existing and proposed site conditions. 
 

(4) The site is physically suitable for the density/intensity of development proposed. 
The project site is proposed for residential development at a density of 16.82 DUs/acre. The project site 
meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of PA-1 (RD-8/Motorcourt Townhomes) of the Esperanza 
Specific Plan, and is physically suitable for this proposed density / intensity of development. 
 

(5) The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or 
their habitat. The project site is not located in an area that has been identified as containing species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or 
regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, nor 
does the site contain any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community, and no wetland habitat is 
present on site; therefore, the design of the subdivision, or improvements proposed thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or their 
habitat. 
 

(6) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, are not likely to 
cause serious public health problems. The design of the proposed subdivision, and the related 
infrastructure improvements existing or proposed on the project site, are not likely to cause serious public 

Item C - 44 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-004 (TT 20159) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

health problems, as The project is not anticipated to involve the transport, use, or disposal of hazardous 
materials during either construction or project implementation, include the use of hazardous materials or 
volatile fuels, nor are there any known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within close proximity 
to the subject site that use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a significant hazard 
to visitors or occupants to the project site. 
 

(7) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, will not conflict 
with easements acquired by the public at large for access through, or use of property within, the 
proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision has provided for all necessary public easements and 
dedications for access through, or use of property within, the proposed subdivision. Furthermore, all such 
public easements and dedications have been designed pursuant to: (a) the requirements of the Policy Plan 
component of The Ontario Plan and applicable area plans; (b) applicable specific plans or planned unit 
developments; (c) applicable provisions of the City of Ontario Development Code; (d) applicable master 
plans and design guidelines of the City; and (e) applicable Standard Drawings of the City. 
 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of August 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item C - 45 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-004 (TT 20159) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

 Page 8 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 

  

Project Site 
 
 
 
 
] 

M
IL

L 
C

R
EE

K
 A

VE
N

U
E 

Item C - 46 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-004 (TT 20159) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit B—Tentative Tract Map 20159 

  

Item C - 47 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-004 (TT 20159) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

 Page 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item C - 48 of 116



 
 
Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 
 
File No: PMTT18-004 (TT 20159) 
 
Related Files: PMTT18-002 (TT 20157), PMTT18-003 (TT 20158), PMTT18-005 (TT 20160) 
 
Project Description: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT18-004 / TTM 20159) to subdivide 13.94 
acres of land into 15 numbered lots and 5 lettered lots residential, public streets, private lanes, landscape 
neighborhood edges, and common open space purposes, for properties generally located at the southeast 
corner of Mill Creek Avenue and Old Edison Road, within PA-1 (RD-8 / Motorcourt Townhomes) of the 
Esperanza Specific Plan.  APNs: 0218-252-07 and 0218-252-08; submitted by RWT Preserve Holdings, 
LLC. 
 
Prepared By: Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Associate Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2418 (direct) 
Email: jaguilo@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits 
 

(a) Tentative Tract Map approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless the final tract map has been recorded, or a time extension has 
been approved by the Planning Commission pursuant to Development Code Section 2.02.025 (Time Limits 
and Extensions). This Permit does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein for performance 
of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 Subdivision Map 
 

(a) The Final Tract Map shall be in conformance with the approved Tentative Tract 
Map on file with the City. Variations rom the approved Tentative Tract Map may be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Department. A substantial variation from the approved Tentative Tract Map may require 
review and approval by the Planning Commission, as determined by the Planning Director. 
 

(b) Tentative Tract Map approval shall be subject to all conditions, requirements and 
recommendations from all other departments/agencies provided on the attached reports/memorandums. 
 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item C - 49 of 116



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT18-004 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

(c) Pursuant to California Government Section 66474.9, the subdivider agrees that it 
will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Ontario or its agents, officers and employees from any 
claim, action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set 
aside, void or annul any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission 
or other authorized board or officer of this subdivision, which action is brought within the time period 
provided for in Government Code Section 66499.37. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the subdivider 
of any such claim, action or proceeding and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.3 General Requirements The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.4 Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs)/Mutual Access and Maintenance 
Agreements 
 

(a) CC&Rs shall be prepared for the Project and shall be recorded prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. 
 

(b) The CC&Rs shall be in a form and contain provisions satisfactory to the City. The 
articles of incorporation for the property owners association and the CC&Rs shall be reviewed and approved 
by the City. 
 

(c) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels. 
 

(d) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels, and common 
maintenance of: 
 

(i) Landscaping and irrigation systems within common areas 
 
(ii) Landscaping and irrigation systems within parkways adjacent to the 

project site, including that portion of any public highway right-of-way between the property line or right-of-
way boundary line and the curb line and also the area enclosed within the curb lines of a median divider 
(Ontario Municipal Code Section 7-3.03), pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 5-22-02 

 
(iii) Shared parking facilities and access drives 
 
(iv) Utility and drainage easements 

 
(e) CC&Rs shall include authorization for the City’s local law enforcement officers to 

enforce City and State traffic and penal codes within the project area. 
 

(f) The CC&Rs shall grant the City of Ontario the right of enforcement of the CC&R 
provisions. 
 

Item C - 50 of 116



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT18-004 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

(g) A specific methodology/procedure shall be established within the CC&Rs for 
enforcement of its provisions by the City of Ontario, if adequate maintenance of the development does not 
occur, such as, but not limited to, provisions that would grant the City the right of access to correct 
maintenance issues and assess the property owners association for all costs incurred. 
 

2.5 Disclosure Statements 
 

(a) A copy of the Public Report from the Department of Real Estate, prepared for the 
subdivision pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 11000 et seq., shall be provided to each 
prospective buyer of the residential units and shall include a statement to the effect that: 
 

(i) This tract is subject to noise from the Ontario International Airport and may 
be more severely impacted in the future. 

 
(ii) Some of the property adjacent to this tract is zoned for agricultural uses 

and there could be fly, odor, or related problems due to the proximity of animals. 
 
(iii) The area south of Riverside Drive lies within the San Bernardino County 

Agricultural Preserve. Dairies currently existing in that area are likely to remain for the foreseeable future. 
 
(iv) This tract is part of a Landscape Maintenance District. The homeowner(s) 

will be assessed through their property taxes for the continuing maintenance of the district. 
 

2.6 Environmental Review  
 

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction 
with the Esperanza Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-002) Environmental Impact Report (SCH # 2002061047) 
certified by the City Council on February 6, 2007. This application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts. The City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed. The previously adopted mitigation measures shall 
be a condition of project approval, and are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.7 Indemnification - The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the 
City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.8 Additional Fees 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 

Item C - 51 of 116



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT18-004 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.9 Off-Site Subdivision Signs - The City Council has authorized the Baldy View Chapter of the 
Building Industry Association to manage a standardized off-site directional sign program on a non-profit 
basis. The program uses uniform sign structures and individual identification and directional signs for 
residential development. No other off-site signing is authorized. (For additional information, contact the 
Baldy View Chapter BIA at (909) 945-1884. 
 

2.10 Additional Requirements 
 

(a) All applicable conditions of approval of Development Agreement (File No. PDA19-
002) and File No. PMTT18-002 (TT 20157) shall apply to this tract. 
 

(b) All applicable conditions of approval of the Esperanza Specific Plan shall apply to 
this tract. 
 

(c) Tentative Tract Map approval shall not be final and complete until such time that 
File No. PSPA19-005 (related Minor Specific Plan Amendment) has been approved by the Zoning 
Administrator. 
 

(d) The applicant shall contact the Ontario Post Office to determine the size and 
location of mailboxes for this project. The location of the mailboxes shall be submitted to the Planning 
Department for review and approval prior to the issuance of building permits.   
 

(e) The Applicant (Developer) shall be responsible for providing fiber optic cable to 
each home pursuant to City requirements and standards. 

 
 

Item C - 52 of 116



Item C - 53 of 116



Item C - 54 of 116



Item C - 55 of 116



Item C - 56 of 116



Item C - 57 of 116



Item C - 58 of 116



Item C - 59 of 116



Item C - 60 of 116



Item C - 61 of 116



Item C - 62 of 116



Item C - 63 of 116



Item C - 64 of 116



Item C - 65 of 116



Item C - 66 of 116



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PMTT18-004 (TT 20159)

NEC Merrill Ave & Mill Creek Ave

0218-252-07, 08 & 09

Vacant

A Tentative Tract Map to subdivide 81.35 acres into 15 numbered lots and 5 lettered
lots

81.35

No

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

Real Estate Disclosure Required.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Jeanie Aguilo

4/13/18

2018-014
N/A

200 FT +

Item C - 67 of 116



CD No.:

PALU No.:

PROJECT CONDITIONS

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 2

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for ONT. The applicant
is required to meet the Real Estate Transaction Disclosure in accordance with California Codes (Business and
Professions Code Section 11010-11024). New residential subdivisions within an Airport Influence Area are required to
file an application for a Public Report consisting of a Notice of Intention (NOI) and a completed questionnaire with the
Department of Real Estate and include the following language within the NOI:

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY: This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is
known as an airport influence area. For that reason, the property may be subject to some of the annoyances or
inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations (for example: noise, vibration, or odors). Individual
sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from person to person. You may wish to consider what airport annoyances,
if any, are associated with the property before you complete your purchase and determine whether they are acceptable
to you.

2018-014

Item C - 68 of 116



Item C - 69 of 116



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

DAB CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 10/18/18 
Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2237 

 
D.A.B. File No.:                                          Related Files: 
 PMTT18-004 Rev 2 

Case Planner: 
Jeanie Irene Aguilo 

Project Name and Location:  
Esperanza Planning Area 2 and Park 1, Cluster Homes 
TM 20159, E Mill Creek Ave, S Old Edison Rd 
 Applicant/Representative: 
Fusco Engineering/ RWT Preserve Holdings. 
3161 Michelson Dr. ste. 425 
Irvine, CA 92612 

 

 
A Tentative Tract Map (dated 9/4/18) has been approved with the consideration that the 
following conditions below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction 
documents. 

 

 

A Tentative Tract Map (dated  ) has not been approved. Corrections noted below are 
required prior to DAB approval. 

CORRECTIONS REQUIRED   

 
1. Provide a utility clear space 8’ wide in parkways 30’ apart for street trees. On construction 

plans, move water meters, drain lines, to the minimum spacing to allow space for street trees. 
Show light standards 15’ away from required tree locations. 

2. Storm water infiltration devices located in landscape areas shall be reviewed and plans approved 
by the Landscape Planning Division prior to permit issuance. Any storm water devices in parkway 
areas shall not displace street trees. 

3. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees at a rate 
established by resolution of the City Council. Typical fees are: 

Plan Check—5 or more acres ............................................... $2,326.00 
Inspection—Construction (per phase up to 3 inspections) ....... $278.00 
Inspection—Field - additional...................................................... $83.00 

 
Once items are complete you may email an electronic set to: 

landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 
 

Item C - 70 of 116

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
 

TO:  Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Assistant Planner 

  Planning Department 

 

FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 

  Fire Department 

 

DATE:  February 12, 2018 

 

SUBJECT: PMTT18-004  – A Tentative Tract Map (TT 20159) to subdivide 81.35 

acres of land into 15 lots and 5 lettered (commonly-owned) lots generally 

located at the northeast corner of Merrill Avenue and Mill Creek Avenue, 

within Planning Areas 1 and 2 (RD-7 and RD-4) of the Esperanza Specific 

Plan (APNs: 0218-252-07, 0218-252-08 and 0218-252-09). 

 

 
   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 
 
SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 

 

A. 2013 CBC Type of Construction:  Type V-B wood frame 
 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Non-rated 
 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  Various 
 

D. Number of Stories:  Two Story  
 

E. Total Square Footage:  Various 
 

F. 2013 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):  R-3, U 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Item C - 71 of 116



 

2 of 3  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

 

1.0 GENERAL 

 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 

development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.” 

 
  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings.  
 
2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 

 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide. 
See Standard #B-004.   

 
  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 

turning radius per Standard #B-005.   
 

  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall 
have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   

 
  2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-six 

(26) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all 
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by 
fire department and other emergency services. 
 

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 

 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code, 
Appendix B, is 1500  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 
  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 

spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications. 
 

  3.4 The public water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved 
by the Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to 
assure availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 

 

Item C - 72 of 116

file://///ont-chfs02/Shared/Fire/Fire%20Prevention/Development/DAB%20Comments/www.ontarioca.gov


 

3 of 3  

 

4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 

 

  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with 
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 13 D. All new fire sprinkler systems, 
except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or more 
shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with 
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 
Department, prior to any work being done.   

 
5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 

 
  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 

development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 
debris both on and off the site. 

 
  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 

position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Homes 
that do not front street shall be provided with an address entry sign at the street.  Address 
numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of the Ontario Municipal 
Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  
 

  5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the 
California Building Code and the California Fire Code. 

 
  5.5  All residential chimneys shall be equipped with an approved spark arrester meeting the 

requirements of the California Building Code. 
 

 

Item C - 73 of 116



Item C - 74 of 116



Item C - 75 of 116



Item C - 76 of 116



X
X

X

Broadband Operations          Anna Vaca        Sr. Systems Analyst    02/16/2018

Item C - 77 of 116



 

 Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
August 19, 2019 

 
DECISION NO.: [insert #] 
 
FILE NO.: PMTT18-005 (TT 20160) 
 
DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT18-005/TTM 20160) to subdivide 22.84 
acres of land into 113 numbered lots and 32 lettered lots for residential, public streets, private lanes, 
landscape neighborhood edges, and common open space purposes, for properties generally located at the 
southeast corner of Mill Creek Avenue and Old Edison Road, within PA-2 (RD-6/6-Pack Courtyard Homes) 
of the Esperanza Specific Plan (APNs: 0218-252-07 and 0218-252-08); submitted by RWT Preserve 
Holdings, LLC. 
 
 
 
 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 
 

RWT PRESERVE HOLDINGS, LLC, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application 
requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PMTT18-005 (TT 20160), as described in the subject of 
this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 
 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 22.84 acres of land located at southeast 
corner of Mill Creek Avenue and Old Edison Road, and is depicted in Exhibit A—Aerial Photograph, 
attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and 
surrounding the project site are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site Vacant/Dairy Farm 
(Pietersma Property) 

(LDR) Low Density 
Residential (2 – 5 
DU/AC), (MDR) 
Medium Density 

Residential (11.1 – 25 
DU/AC) & (OS-R) 

Open Space – 
Recreation (Parkland) 

Esperanza Specific 
Plan 

Planning Areas – PA-1 
(RD-7), PA-2 (RD-4), 
PA-3 (RD-8), and a 

portion of PA-4 (RD-6) 

North Vacant 
(MU) Mixed Use & 

(OS-NR) Open Space 
– Non Recreation 

Rich Haven Specific 
Plan 

Mixed Use District PA 
8A, 8B, 9A, & 9B 
(Mixed-Use Stand 
Alone Residential 

Overlay) 

South Vacant/ Mass Graded 

(LDR) Low Density 
Residential (2 – 5 

DU/AC) & (PS) Public 
School 

Esperanza Specific 
Plan 

Planning Areas – PA-5 
(RD-5), PA-6 (RD-4), 
PA-7 (RD-1), PA-8 

(RD-2), PA-9 (RD-1), 
PA-10 (RD-3, PA-11 
(School), portion of 

PA-4 (RD-6) 

Item C - 78 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-005 (TT 20160) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

East City of Eastvale 
Commercial Retail, 

Business Park, Light 
Industrial 

The Goodman 
Commerce Center 

Specific Plan 

PA1 (Commercial 
Retail), PA4 

(Commercial, Retail, 
Business Park, 
Hospital), PA3 

(Commercial, Retail, 
Business Park, 

Hospital, Industrial) 

West Dairy Farm 

(LDR) Low Density 
Residential (2 – 5 

DU/AC) (OS-NR) Open 
Space – Non 
Recreation 

Specific Plan 
(Agricultural Overlay) N/A 

 
(2) Project Description: 

 
(a) Background — The Applicant is requesting Tentative Tract Map approval to 

subdivide 22.84 acres of land into 113 numbered lots and 32 lettered lots for residential and private streets 
purposes. The Tentative Map is one of three “B” Maps (PMTT18-003 (TT 20158) and PMTT18-004 (TT 
20159)) that were processed concurrently with the related “A” Map (PMTT18-002 / TT 20157). The “A” Map 
subdivides the overall project area to facilitate future land uses, backbone infrastructure improvements 
(major streets, sewer, water and storm drain facilities) and subsequent tentative maps “B” Maps further 
subdivide the same parcel of land into smaller lots to facilitate residential development.   
 
The proposed Tentative Map will further subdivide Lots 5 of Tract 20157 (A Map) to allow for the 
development of the 6-Pack Courtyard Homes product type. The Tentative Map will create 113 numbered 
lots that will allow for the development of 113 residential units, with lot sizes ranging from 3,135 to 8,856 
square feet. The Esperanza Specific Plan requires 6-Pack courtyard homes to maintain a minimum lot size 
of 2,200 square feet. 
 

(a) Site Access/Circulation — The project site is located within the related A Map 
Phase 1 improvement area and will have access from Mill Creek Avenue and Hamner Avenue, which runs 
north/south, and Eucalyptus Avenue, which runs east/west. The proposed Tentative Map is consistent with 
TOP Policy CD2-2, which promotes the importance of neighborhood connectivity through local street 
patterns and neighborhood edges as a way to unify neighborhoods. 
 

(b) Parking — A parking plan was completed for the related A Map (Tract 20157) to 
demonstrate that sufficient parking is proposed throughout the project site. The A Map’s proposed product 
types would require a total of 1,062 parking spaces, in which 864 of those parking spaces would be provided 
within a garage. The parking plan demonstrates that a total of 1,772 spaces will be provided, exceeding the 
minimum requirements by 710 parking spaces. The additional parking spaces are provided throughout the 
site as on-street parking, driveways, and within the private drive aisles. The parking plan demonstrates that 
there will be an average of 4.1 parking spaces per unit, which should be more than adequate to 
accommodate both resident and visitor parking. As the proposed tract develops, parking will continue to be 
analyzed for each product type as part of the Development Plan entitlement process. 
 

(c) Open Space — The related A Map (Tract 20157) will facilitate the construction of 
neighborhood parks, sidewalks, parkways, and open space areas within the tract. TOP Policy PR1-1 
requires new developments to provide a minimum of 2 acres of Private Park per 1,000 residents. The A 
Map is required to provide 2.91 acres of parkland to meet the minimum TOP private park requirement. To 

Item C - 79 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-005 (TT 20160) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 3 

satisfy the park requirement, the applicant is constructing a central neighborhood park totaling 3.4 acres of 
land, comprised of a 0.66-acre primary recreation center park on the northern half of the site, a 0.33-acre 
garden park along the western portion of the site, and 0.27-acre pocket park located along the southern 
portion of the site, for a total of 4.67 acres of land, which exceeds the minimum private park requirements. 
The pedestrian circulation system provides connectivity to the parks, residential neighborhood, and the 
surrounding communities. Future park designs and amenities will be addressed as part of the Development 
Plan entitlement process, which will require consistency with Esperanza Specific Plan. 
 

(d) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) — As a Condition of Approval, 
staff has required that CC&Rs be prepared and recorded with the Final Map. The CC&Rs will outline the 
maintenance responsibilities for the open space areas, recreation amenities, drive aisles, utilities, and 
upkeep of the entire site to ensure the on-going maintenance of the common areas and facilities. 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with 
the Esperanza Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-002) Environmental Impact Report (SCH # 2002061047) 
certified by the City Council on February 6, 2007, and this Application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to CEQA (Public Resources Code Section 21000 
et seq.), and an initial study has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 

Item C - 80 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-005 (TT 20160) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

 
WHEREAS, on August 19, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 

Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the previous Certified EIR and 
supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and information contained in the previous Certified EIR 
and supporting documentation, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction with the 
Esperanza Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-002) Environmental Impact Report (SCH # 2002061047) certified 
by the City Council on February 6, 2007. 
 

(2) The previous Certified EIR contains a complete and accurate reporting of the 
environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous Certified EIR was completed in compliance with CEQA and the Guidelines 
promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; and 
 

(4) The previous Certified EIR reflects the independent judgment of the Planning Commission; 
and 
 

(5) The proposed project will introduce no new significant environmental impacts beyond those 
previously analyzed in the previous Certified EIR, and all mitigation measures previously adopted with the 
Certified EIR, are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. Based on 
the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in Section 1, above, the DAB finds 
that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental Certified EIR is not required for the Project, as the 
Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require major revisions 
to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase 
in the severity of previously identified significant effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances under which the 

Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of 
new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified 
significant effects; and 

 
(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not known and could 

not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the Certified EIR was 
certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the Certified 
EIR; or 

 

Item C - 81 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-005 (TT 20160) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than 
shown in the Certified EIR; or 

 
(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in 

fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the Project, but the City 
declined to adopt such measures; or  

 
(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those analyzed in 

the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but which 
the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan. The project site is one of the 
properties listed in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) 
of the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix, and the proposed project is consistent with the number 
of dwelling units (113) and density (10.96 DU/AC) specified in the Available Land Inventory. Per the 
Available Land Inventory, the Esperanza Specific Plan is required to provide 1,410 dwelling units with an 
overall density of 5-21 DU/AC. 

 
SECTION 4: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 

Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 5: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is consistent with the goals, policies, 
plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components 
of The Ontario Plan, and applicable area and specific plans, and planned unit developments. The 
proposed Tentative Tract Map is located within the LDR (Low Density Residential - 2 to 5 DU/AC) land use 
district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and PA-2 (RD-6/6-Pack Courtyard Homes) of the Esperanza 
Specific Plan. The proposed subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the 
Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the 
project will contribute to providing “a spectrum of housing types and price ranges that match the jobs in the 
City, and that make it possible for people to live and work in Ontario and maintain a quality of life” (Goal 
LU1). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to “incorporate a variety of land uses and 

Item C - 82 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-005 (TT 20160) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

building types that contribute to a complete community where residents at all stages of life, employers, 
workers, and visitors, have a wide spectrum of choices of where they can live, work, shop, and recreate 
within Ontario” (Policy LU1-6 Complete Community). 
 

(2) The design or improvement of the proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is consistent 
with the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable specific plans and planned unit 
developments. The proposed Tentative Tract Map is located within the LDR (Low Density Residential - 2 
to 5 DU/AC) land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and PA-2 (RD-6/6-Pack Courtyard Homes) 
of the Esperanza Specific Plan. The proposed design or improvement of the subdivision is consistent with 
the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to providing “[a] high level of design quality 
resulting in public spaces, streetscapes, and developments that are attractive, safe, functional and distinct” 
(Goal CD2). Furthermore, the project will promote the City’s policy to “create distinct residential 
neighborhoods that are functional, have a sense of community, emphasize livability and social interaction, 
and are uniquely identifiable places through such elements as: 
 

 A pattern of smaller, walkable blocks that promote access, activity and safety 
 Variable setbacks and parcel sizes to accommodate a diversity of housing types 
 Traffic calming measures to slow traffic and promote walkability while maintaining 

acceptable fire protection and traffic flows 
 Floor plans that encourage views onto the street and de-emphasize the visual and 

physical dominance of garages (introducing the front porch as the “outdoor living room”), as appropriate 
 Landscaped parkways, with sidewalks separated from the curb.” (Policy CD2-2 

Neighborhood Design) 
 

(3) The site is physically suitable for the type of development proposed. The project site 
meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the PA-2 (RD-6/6-Pack Courtyard Homes) of the Esperanza 
Specific Plan, and is physically suitable for the type of residential development proposed in terms of zoning, 
land use and development activity proposed, and existing and proposed site conditions. 

 
(4) The site is physically suitable for the density/intensity of development proposed. 

The project site is proposed for residential development at a density of 10.96 DUs/acre. The project site 
meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the PA-2 (RD-6/6-Pack Courtyard Homes) of the Esperanza 
Specific Plan, and is physically suitable for this proposed density / intensity of development. 
 

(5) The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or 
their habitat. The project site is not located in an area that has been identified as containing species 
identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or regional plans, policies or 
regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, nor 
does the site contain any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community, and no wetland habitat is 
present on site; therefore, the design of the subdivision, or improvements proposed thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or their 
habitat. 
 

(6) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, are not likely to 
cause serious public health problems. The design of the proposed subdivision, and the related 
infrastructure improvements existing or proposed on the project site, are not likely to cause serious public 
health problems, as The project is not anticipated to involve the transport, use, or disposal of hazardous 
materials during either construction or project implementation, include the use of hazardous materials or 
volatile fuels, nor are there any known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within close proximity 
to the subject site that use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a significant hazard 
to visitors or occupants to the project site. 

Item C - 83 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-005 (TT 20160) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

(7) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, will not conflict 
with easements acquired by the public at large for access through, or use of property within, the 
proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision has provided for all necessary public easements and 
dedications for access through, or use of property within, the proposed subdivision. Furthermore, all such 
public easements and dedications have been designed pursuant to: (a) the requirements of the Policy Plan 
component of The Ontario Plan and applicable area plans; (b) applicable specific plans or planned unit 
developments; (c) applicable provisions of the City of Ontario Development Code; (d) applicable master 
plans and design guidelines of the City; and (e) applicable Standard Drawings of the City. 
 

SECTION 6: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 5, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 7: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 8: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of August 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item C - 84 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-005 (TT 20160) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

 Page 8 

Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

 
  

Project Site 
 
 
 
 

M
IL

L 
C

R
EE

K
 A

VE
N

U
E 

Item C - 85 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-005 (TT 20160) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit B—Tentative Tract Map 20160 

  

Item C - 86 of 116



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT18-005 (TT 20160) 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

 Page 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 
 

Item C - 87 of 116



 
 
Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 
 
File No: PMTT18-005 (TT 20160) 
 
Related Files: PMTT18-002 (TT 20157), PMTT18-003 (TT 20158), PMTT18-004 (TT 20159) 
 
Project Description: A Tentative Tract Map (File No. PMTT18-005 / TTM 20160) to subdivide 22.84 
acres of land into 113 numbered lots and 32 lettered lots for residential, public streets, private lanes, 
landscape neighborhood edges, and common open space purposes, for properties generally located at the 
southeast corner of Mill Creek Avenue and Old Edison Road, within PA-2 (RD-6 / 6-Pack Courtyard Homes) 
of the Esperanza Specific Plan.  APNs: 0218-252-07 and 0218-252-08; submitted by RWT Preserve 
Holdings, LLC. 
 
Prepared By: Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Associate Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2418 (direct) 
Email: jaguilo@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits 
 

(a) Tentative Tract Map approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless the final tract map has been recorded, or a time extension has 
been approved by the Planning Commission pursuant to Development Code Section 2.02.025 (Time Limits 
and Extensions). This Permit does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein for performance 
of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 Subdivision Map 
 

(a) The Final Tract Map shall be in conformance with the approved Tentative Tract 
Map on file with the City. Variations rom the approved Tentative Tract Map may be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Department. A substantial variation from the approved Tentative Tract Map may require 
review and approval by the Planning Commission, as determined by the Planning Director. 
 

(b) Tentative Tract Map approval shall be subject to all conditions, requirements and 
recommendations from all other departments/agencies provided on the attached reports/memorandums. 
 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item C - 88 of 116



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT18-005 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

(c) Pursuant to California Government Section 66474.9, the subdivider agrees that it 
will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Ontario or its agents, officers and employees from any 
claim, action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set 
aside, void or annul any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission 
or other authorized board or officer of this subdivision, which action is brought within the time period 
provided for in Government Code Section 66499.37. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the subdivider 
of any such claim, action or proceeding and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.3 General Requirements - The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.4 Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs)/Mutual Access and Maintenance 
Agreements 
 

(a) CC&Rs shall be prepared for the Project and shall be recorded prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. 
 

(b) The CC&Rs shall be in a form and contain provisions satisfactory to the City. The 
articles of incorporation for the property owners association and the CC&Rs shall be reviewed and approved 
by the City. 
 

(c) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels. 
 

(d) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels, and common 
maintenance of: 
 

(i) Landscaping and irrigation systems within common areas 
 
(ii) Landscaping and irrigation systems within parkways adjacent to the 

project site, including that portion of any public highway right-of-way between the property line or right-of-
way boundary line and the curb line and also the area enclosed within the curb lines of a median divider 
(Ontario Municipal Code Section 7-3.03), pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 5-22-02 

 
(iii) Shared parking facilities and access drives 
 
(iv) Utility and drainage easements 

 
(e) CC&Rs shall include authorization for the City’s local law enforcement officers to 

enforce City and State traffic and penal codes within the project area. 
 

(f) The CC&Rs shall grant the City of Ontario the right of enforcement of the CC&R 
provisions. 
 

Item C - 89 of 116



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT18-005 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

(g) A specific methodology/procedure shall be established within the CC&Rs for 
enforcement of its provisions by the City of Ontario, if adequate maintenance of the development does not 
occur, such as, but not limited to, provisions that would grant the City the right of access to correct 
maintenance issues and assess the property owners association for all costs incurred. 
 

2.5 Disclosure Statements 
 

(a) A copy of the Public Report from the Department of Real Estate, prepared for the 
subdivision pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 11000 et seq., shall be provided to each 
prospective buyer of the residential units and shall include a statement to the effect that: 
 

(i) This tract is subject to noise from the Ontario International Airport and may 
be more severely impacted in the future. 

 
(ii) Some of the property adjacent to this tract is zoned for agricultural uses 

and there could be fly, odor, or related problems due to the proximity of animals. 
 
(iii) The area south of Riverside Drive lies within the San Bernardino County 

Agricultural Preserve. Dairies currently existing in that area are likely to remain for the foreseeable future. 
 
(iv) This tract is part of a Landscape Maintenance District. The homeowner(s) 

will be assessed through their property taxes for the continuing maintenance of the district. 
 

2.6 Environmental Review  
 

(a) The environmental impacts of this project were previously reviewed in conjunction 
with the Esperanza Specific Plan (File No. PSP05-002) Environmental Impact Report (SCH # 2002061047) 
certified by the City Council on February 6, 2007. This application introduces no new significant 
environmental impacts. The City's "Guidelines for the Implementation of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental assessment in situations where the 
impacts of subsequent projects are adequately analyzed. The previously adopted mitigation measures shall 
be a condition of project approval, and are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.7 Indemnification - The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the 
City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.8 Additional Fees 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 

Item C - 90 of 116



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT18-005 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.9 Off-Site Subdivision Signs - The City Council has authorized the Baldy View Chapter of the 
Building Industry Association to manage a standardized off-site directional sign program on a non-profit 
basis. The program uses uniform sign structures and individual identification and directional signs for 
residential development. No other off-site signing is authorized. (For additional information, contact the 
Baldy View Chapter BIA at (909) 945-1884. 
 

2.10 Additional Requirements 
 

(a) All applicable conditions of approval of Development Agreement (File No. PDA19-
002) and File No. PMTT18-002 (TT 20157) shall apply to this tract. 
 

(b) All applicable conditions of approval of the Esperanza Specific Plan shall apply to 
this tract. 
 

(c) Tentative Tract Map approval shall not be final and complete until such time that 
File No. PSPA19-005 (related Minor Specific Plan Amendment) has been approved by the Zoning 
Administrator. 
 

(d) The applicant shall contact the Ontario Post Office to determine the size and 
location of mailboxes for this project. The location of the mailboxes shall be submitted to the Planning 
Department for review and approval prior to the issuance of building permits.   
 

(e) The Applicant (Developer) shall be responsible for providing fiber optic cable to 
each home pursuant to City requirements and standards. 

 
 

Item C - 91 of 116



Item C - 92 of 116



Item C - 93 of 116



Item C - 94 of 116



Item C - 95 of 116



Item C - 96 of 116



Item C - 97 of 116



Item C - 98 of 116



Item C - 99 of 116



Item C - 100 of 116



Item C - 101 of 116



Item C - 102 of 116



Item C - 103 of 116



Item C - 104 of 116



Item C - 105 of 116



Item C - 106 of 116



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

DAB CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 
2/1/19 

Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Carolyn Bell, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2237 

 D.A.B. File No.:                                          Related Files: 
 PMTT18-005 Rev 3 

Case Planner: 
Jeanie Irene Aguilo 

Project Name and Location:  
Esperanza Planning Area 2 – SF homes - clusters 
TM 20160, E Mill Creek Ave, S Old Edison Rd 
 Applicant/Representative: 
Fusco Engineering/ RWT Preserve Holdings. 
3161 Michelson Dr. ste. 425 
Irvine, CA 92612 

 

 
A Tentative Tract Map (dated 1/7/19 ) has been approved with the consideration that the 
following conditions below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 A Tentative Tract Map (dated  ) has not been approved. Corrections noted below are 
required prior to DAB approval. 

  
On Construction Plans: 
1. Note decorative paving for all motor courts including the lots facing the parking rows aisles. 
2. Correct landscape concept plans to meet the standards of the Landscape Development 

Guidelines. 
3. Landscaped slopes to be max 3:1. Correct sections and plans with 2:1 slopes. 
4. Show light standards 15’ away from required tree locations. 
5. Storm water infiltration devices located in landscape areas shall be reviewed and plans approved 

by the Landscape Planning Division prior to permit issuance. Any storm water devices in parkway 
areas shall not displace street trees. 

6. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees at a rate 
established by resolution of the City Council. Fees are: 

Plan Check—5 or more acres ............................................... $2,326.00 
Inspection—Construction (per phase up to 3 inspections) ....... $278.00 
Total………………………………………………………………..$1579.00 
Inspection—Field - additional...................................................... $83.00 

Construction plans with plan check number in title and subject line may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

Item C - 107 of 116

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

Airport Influence Area:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection Overflight Notification

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone

FAA Notification Surfaces

Avigation Easement 
Dedication
Recorded Overflight 
Notification

Real Estate Transaction
Disclosure

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

Airport Planner Signature:

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Proposed Structure Height:

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

Airspace Obstruction 
Surfaces

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PMTT18-005 (TT 20160)

NEC Merrill Ave & Mill Creek Ave

0218-252-07 & 08

Vacant

A Tentative Tract Map to subdivide 22.84 acres into 113 numbered lots and 29
lettered lots

22.84

No

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

Real Estate Disclosure Required.

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Jeanie Aguilo

4/13/18

2018-013
N/A

200 FT +

Item C - 108 of 116



CD No.:

PALU No.:

PROJECT CONDITIONS

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 2

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for ONT. The applicant
is required to meet the Real Estate Transaction Disclosure in accordance with California Codes (Business and
Professions Code Section 11010-11024). New residential subdivisions within an Airport Influence Area are required to
file an application for a Public Report consisting of a Notice of Intention (NOI) and a completed questionnaire with the
Department of Real Estate and include the following language within the NOI:

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY: This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is
known as an airport influence area. For that reason, the property may be subject to some of the annoyances or
inconveniences associated with proximity to airport operations (for example: noise, vibration, or odors). Individual
sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from person to person. You may wish to consider what airport annoyances,
if any, are associated with the property before you complete your purchase and determine whether they are acceptable
to you.

2018-013

Item C - 109 of 116



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Jeanie Irene Aguilo, Assistant Planner 
  Planning Department 
 
FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
  Fire Department 
 
DATE:  February 12, 2018 
 
SUBJECT: PMTT18-005  – A Tentative Tract Map (TT 20160) to subdivide 22.84 

acres of land into 113 lots generally located at the northeast corner of 
Merrill Avenue and Mill Creek Avenue, within Planning Area 2 (RD-4) of 
the Esperanza Specific Plan (APNs: 0218-252-07 and 0218-252-08). 

 
 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 
 
SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 
 

A. 2013 CBC Type of Construction:  Type V-B wood frame 
 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Non-rated 
 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  Various 
 

D. Number of Stories:  Two Story  
 

E. Total Square Footage:  Various 
 

F. 2013 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):  R-3, U 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item C - 110 of 116



 

2 of 3  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 

1.0 GENERAL 
 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ontarioca.gov, click on “Fire Department” and then on “Standards and Forms.” 

 
  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings.  
 
2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 
 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide. 
See Standard #B-004.   

 
  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 
turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

 
  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall 

have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   
 

  2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-six 
(26) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all 
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by 
fire department and other emergency services. 
 

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 
 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2016 California Fire Code, 
Appendix B, is 1500  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 
  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 

spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications. 
 

  3.4 The public water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved 
by the Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to 
assure availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 
 

Item C - 111 of 116

file://///ont-chfs02/Shared/Fire/Fire%20Prevention/Development/DAB%20Comments/www.ontarioca.gov


 

3 of 3  

 

4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 
 

  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with 
National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 13 D. All new fire sprinkler systems, 
except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or more 
shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with 
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 
Department, prior to any work being done.   

 
5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 
 

  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 
development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 
debris both on and off the site. 

 
  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 

position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Homes 
that do not front street shall be provided with an address entry sign at the street.  Address 
numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of the Ontario Municipal 
Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  
 

  5.3 Single station smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are required to be installed per the 
California Building Code and the California Fire Code. 

 
  5.5  All residential chimneys shall be equipped with an approved spark arrester meeting the 

requirements of the California Building Code. 
 

 

Item C - 112 of 116



Item C - 113 of 116



Item C - 114 of 116



Item C - 115 of 116



X
X

X

Broadband Operations       Anna Vaca       Sr Systems Analyst       02/16/2018

Item C - 116 of 116



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
August 19, 2019 

DECISION NO.: [Insert DAB No.] 

FILE NO.: PDEV17-012 

DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to remodel an existing fueling station (Chevron) with 
convenience store, including the construction of a new 1,879 square foot convenience store and 630 square 
foot automated carwash on 0.35 acre of land located at 1425 East Fourth Street, within the CN 
(Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district; (APN: 0108-381-24) submitted by St. Mary & St. Michael, 
Inc. 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

ST. MARY & ST. MICHAEL, INC., (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application 
requesting Development Plan approval for File No. PDEV17-012, as described in the subject of this 
Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 0.35 acre of land located at 1425 East
Fourth Street, and is depicted in Exhibit A: Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan 
and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan Land Use 

Site Chevron Gas Station Neighborhood 
Commercial 

CN (Neighborhood 
Commercial) N/A 

North Denny’s Restaurant Neighborhood 
Commercial 

CN (Neighborhood 
Commercial) N/A 

South Single Family 
Residential Homes 

Low Density 
Residential 

LDR5 (Low Density 
Residential) N/A 

East Yum-Yum Donuts Neighborhood 
Commercial 

CN (Neighborhood 
Commercial) N/A 

West Days Inn Hotel Neighborhood 
Commercial 

CN (Neighborhood 
Commercial) N/A 

(2) Project Description:

(a) Background — The Applicant is requesting Development Plan approval to remodel
an existing fueling station (Chevron) and convenience store. The existing fueling station/convenience store 
facility is comprised of two fuel islands with two pump stations per island, a 1,104-square foot fueling island 
canopy, and a 1,386-square foot convenience store. The Applicant is proposing to demolish the existing 
convenience store, replacing it with a new 1,879 square foot store, as-well-as construct a new 630 square 
foot automated carwash. The existing fueling island canopy will remain as-is and the new convenience 
store will simply expand upon the existing convenience store location (see Exhibit B: Conceptual Site Plan, 
attached).  

Item D - 1 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-012 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

The proposed carwash will be located at the rear (north side) of the convenience store. Carwash facilities 
ancillary to fueling stations are a permitted land use within the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning 
district. 
 

(b) Site Design/Building Layout — The existing fuel island canopy and associated 
pump islands are located immediately behind the project’s Fourth Street (front) property line, within the 
required 20-foot street setback area. The canopy location was established prior to the City’s current street 
setback requirement and is, therefore, legal nonconforming, thereby allowing the canopy to remain in place. 
 
The new convenience store is proposed approximately 15 feet behind the fuel island canopy. The proposed 
carwash will be attached to the rear of the convenience store, which patrons may access via a driveway on 
the west side of the convenience store and exit on the east side of the store. Parking is available long the 
project’s east property line and adjacent to each pump island. 
 

(c) Site Access/Circulation — Access to the project site from Fourth Street is currently 
provided by two driveways located at the southwest and southeast corners of the site, which are to remain 
in place. The westerly driveway is a shared drive aisle providing direct access to the pump islands and 
carwash, as-well-as to a parking lot serving the neighboring Denny’s Restaurant. The easterly driveway 
accommodates exiting from the carwash tunnel and direct access from Fourth Street to pump islands and 
the Project’s off-street parking area. 
 

(d) Parking — The proposed Project exceeds the minimum off-street parking 
requirements specified in the Ontario Development Code, as shown in Table 1: Parking Summary, below: 
 

Table 1: Parking Summary 

Type of Use Building Area 
(SF) Parking Ratio Spaces 

Required 
Spaces 

Provided 

Car Washes, Full-Service 
and Self-Service (Ancillary to 
existing gas station) 

630 SF 

One space per employee, minimum 10 spaces; 
plus required parking for accessory uses (i.e., 
motor vehicle repair and service, and retail 
uses). 

10 13 

Convenience Retail Store - 
Proposed Addition 1,879 SF 4 spaces per 1,000 SF of Gross Floor Area 8 6 

TOTAL 2,509 SF  18 19 

 
Six off-street parking spaces will be provided along the east side of the convenience store, Eight parking 
spaces will be provided adjacent to the pump islands, and the stacking lane for the carwash will provide 
five parking spaces, for a total of 19 parking spaces. 
 

(e) Architecture — The project will feature a modern architecture style that exemplifies 
the high quality architecture required by the Ontario Development Code. This is demonstrated by the 
incorporation of the following architectural treatments to the proposed convenience store and the carwash 
facility (see Exhibits F and G—Building Elevations, attached): 
 

 Smooth machine toweled stucco finish 
 12-inch, Flush Wall Metal Panels 
 Anodized Entry Door & Window Frames 
 Metal Awnings along the Front and Sides of the Convenience Store 
 Inter Lock Standing Seam Metal Canopies along the Convenience Store Front 
 Color blocking 

 

Item D - 2 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-012 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 3 

(f) Landscaping — No landscaping currently exists on the project site. With the 
proposed construction of a new convenience store and automated carwash, the Development Code 
requires the Project provide a minimum 15 percent landscape coverage, which has been proposed. The 
conceptual landscape plan (see Exhibit D: Conceptual Landscape Plan, attached) submitted with the 
Project proposes the installation of a variety of new trees, plants, and shrubs along the project perimeter 
and throughout the site, including: 
 

 (2) - Jacaranda Trees (24-inch box); 
 (9) - Shade Trees (24-inch box); 
 (6) - California Native Trees – 25 percent required to be provided (15-Gallon to 36-inch box); 

and 
 An assortment of low-water use plants and shrubs (One-Gallon to 5-Gallon). 

 
Part II—RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 

Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on July 16, 2018, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the Application 
and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

 
 

Item D - 3 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-012 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board (DAB) of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record for 
the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written 
and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (In-Fill Developments) of the CEQA Guidelines, which 
consists of projects characterized as in-fill development and meeting the following conditions: 
 

 The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general 
plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations; 

 The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no more than five acres, 
and is substantially surrounded by urban uses; 

 The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened species; 
 Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air 

quality, or water quality; and 
 The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. 

 
(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set 

forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 

 
SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 

Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

Item D - 4 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-012 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the Neighborhood Commercial 
land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district. 
The development standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be constructed and 
maintained are consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General 
Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed carwash facility and the 
new convenience store will provide the area with an additional service, promoting a variety of land uses 
and building types in the area, per LU1-6 (Complete Community). Additionally, the project will be well 
landscaped, and will contribute to the overall streetscape along Fourth Street, per CD2-9 (Landscape 
Design) and CD3-6 (Landscaping); and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the CN 
(Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district, including standards relative to the particular proposed land use 
(carwash), as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, number of off-street 
parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions. The 
project site is bordered by commercial uses to the west, east and north, and currently contains a Chevron 
gas station. The proposed one-story carwash building and convenience store additions will not impose any 
privacy or view issues; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The DAB 
has required certain safeguards, and imposed certain conditions of approval, which have been established 
to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district are maintained; [ii] the 
project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in any 
significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in which it is located; and 
[v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components 
of The Ontario Plan; and 

 
(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 

design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) that are applicable to the proposed 
Project, including building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street 
parking and loading spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site 
landscaping, and fences and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically 
related to the particular land use being proposed. The project, as proposed, meets all design guidelines, 
including parking, landscaping, setbacks, FAR, fencing, noise and debris attenuation, and circulation. As a 
result of this review, the DAB has determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the 
conditions of approval, will be consistent with the development standards and guidelines described in the 
CN (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district and the City’s Development Code. 
 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby APPROVES the Application subject to each and 
every condition set forth in the Department reports included as Attachment A of this Decision, and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

Item D - 5 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-012 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

 
SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 

harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of August 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 
 

Item D - 6 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-012 
August 19, 2019 
 

Page 7 

Exhibit A—AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH 
 

 
 

 

Item D - 7 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-012 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit B—CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN 
 

 

(N) Convenience 
Store 

(N) Carwash 
Bay 

 

(E) Fuel 
Canopy 

To 
Remain 

EAST FOURTH STREET 

Item D - 8 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-012 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit C—CARWASH & CONVENIENCE STORE FLOOR PLAN 
 

 

 

(N) New Carwash Addition 
630 SF (17.5’ X 36’) 

(N) Convenience Store 
1,879 SF (49.45’ X 38’) 

Item D - 9 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-012 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit D—CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN 

EAST FOURTH STREET 

Item D - 10 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-012 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 11 

Exhibit E—CARWASH & CONVENIENCE STORE PERSPECTIVE VIEWS 
 

 
 Northwest View of Convenience Store Southwest View of Convenience Store  
 

Northwest View of Carwash Bay and Convenience Store  

Item D - 11 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-012 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 12 

 
Exhibit F—BUILDING ELEVATIONS 

 

 
South Elevation 

 

 
North Elevation 

Item D - 12 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-012 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 13 

 
Exhibit G—BUILDING ELEVATIONS 

 

 
East Elevation 

 

 
West Elevation  

Item D - 13 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-012 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 14 

Exhibit H—EXISTING FUEL CANOPY PHOTOS 
 

 
Northwest View of Existing Canopy 

 

 
Southeast View of Existing Canopy 

Item D - 14 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV17-012 
August 19, 2019 
 

Page 15 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item D - 15 of 43



 
 
Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 
 
File No: PDEV17-012 
 
Related Files: None 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan to remodel an existing Chevron Gas Station that includes the 
construction of a new 1,879 square foot convenience store and a 630 square foot automated carwash 
facility on 0.35 acres of land located at 1425 East Fourth Street, within the CN (Neighborhood Commercial) 
zoning district. (APN: 0108-381-24); submitted by St. Mary & St. Michael, Inc. 
 
 
Prepared By: Denny D. Chen, Associate Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2424 (direct) 
Email: dchen@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item D - 16 of 43



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV17-012 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; Landscape 
Planning Division. 
 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been 
approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation 
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be 
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement 
of the changes. 
 

2.4 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced pavement treatment. The 
enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, to the first intersecting 
drive aisle or parking space. 

 
(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street parking 

and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of 
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking. 

 
(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be 

provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained 
in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

 
(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the 

physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law 
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 

 
(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 

facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current regulations 
contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). 
 

2.5 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting 
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section 
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking 
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell 
switch. 
 

Item D - 17 of 43



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV17-012 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or 
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.6 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. 
 

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and 
all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by parapet walls or roof screens 
that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the building architecture. 
 

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers, 
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or 
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls. 
 
 

2.7 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development 
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). All proposed signage requires a separate sign permit review and 
approval. 
 

2.8 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not 
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public 
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.9 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated 
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines, 
meeting the following conditions: 
 

(i) The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and 
all applicable general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations; 

(ii) The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no 
more than five acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses; 

(iii) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or 
threatened species; 

(iv) Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to 
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and 

(v) The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and 
public services. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.10 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 

Item D - 18 of 43



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV17-012 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.11 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.12 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) Applicant shall work with Planning Department staff during the plan check process, 
to ensure that all building elevations & architectural treatments are consistent with the approved building 
elevations and to also ensure that the project will feature a modern architecture style that exemplifies the 
high quality architecture required by the Ontario Development Code Design Guidelines. 

 
(b) The proposed carwash facility, behind the convenience store, shall be setback a 

minimum of 5 feet from the north property line. 
 
(c) The Chevron Gas station shall obtain and maintain a City Business License for the 

operation of the new carwash facility. 
 

(d) Applicant shall work with the Landscape Division staff to finalize the Landscape 
Pallet & revise and update the landscape information legend. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item D - 19 of 43



Item D - 20 of 43



Item D - 21 of 43



Item D - 22 of 43



Item D - 23 of 43



Item D - 24 of 43



Item D - 25 of 43



Item D - 26 of 43



Item D - 27 of 43



Item D - 28 of 43



Item D - 29 of 43



Item D - 30 of 43



Item D - 31 of 43



Item D - 32 of 43



Item D - 33 of 43



Item D - 34 of 43



Item D - 35 of 43



Item D - 36 of 43



Item D - 37 of 43



Item D - 38 of 43



Item D - 39 of 43



Item D - 40 of 43



Item D - 41 of 43



Item D - 42 of 43



Item D - 43 of 43



 

 Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
August 19, 2018 

 
DECISION NO.: [Insert DAB No.] 
 
FILE NO.: PDEV18-043 
 
RELATED FILE: None 
 
DESCRIPTION:   A Development Plan to construct one 51,533-square foot industrial building on 
2.05 acres of land located at 508 South Palmetto Avenue, within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district 
(APNs: 1011-193-04 and 1011-193-03); submitted by State Street Ontario OZ Properties, LLC. 
Planning Commission action is required. 
 
 
 

Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 
 

CHRIS EVANS, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting 
Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV18-043, as described in the subject of this Decision (herein after 
referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 
 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 2.05 acres of land located at the 
southwest corner of State Street and Palmetto Avenue, at 426 South Palmetto Avenue, and is depicted in 
Exhibit A—Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and zoning designations, and 
specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site: Vacant Land BP (Business Park) IL (Light Industrial) N/A 

North: Union Pacific Railroad Rail RC (Rail Corridor) N/A 

South: Industrial Building BP (Business Park) IL (Light Industrial) N/A 

East: Self-Storage Facility Industrial  IL (Light Industrial) N/A 

West: Industrial Buildings BP (Business Park) IL (Light Industrial) N/A 
 

(2) Project Description: 
 

(a) Background — The applicant is requesting Development Plan approval to 
construct a 51,555-square foot industrial building on the above-described project site, with a floor area ratio 
of 0.55. The proposed building is oriented north to south, with the front entrance located along the Project’s 
Palmetto Avenue frontage, facing east toward the street and south toward the employee and visitor parking 
area. 
 

(b) Site Design/Building Layout — The proposed building will be setback 18 feet from 
the State Street (north) property line, 10 feet from the Palmetto Avenue (east) property line, and 10 feet 
from the Mountain Avenue frontage road (west) property line. A yard area, designed for tractor-trailer 
parking, truck maneuvering, loading activities, and outdoor staging, is oriented to the south side of the 
proposed building. The yard area will be screened from view of public streets by a combination of building 
walls and screen walls with view-obstructing access gates. 

Item E - 1 of 40



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-043 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

 
(c) Site Access and Circulation — The parking and loading areas will be accessed 

from driveways located at the Project’s southeast and southwest corners, accessed from Palmetto Avenue 
and Mountain Avenue (frontage road), respectively (see Exhibit B—Site Plan, attached). Both site entry 
points provide access to a secured tractor-trailer loading area, and employee and visitor parking areas on 
the south side of the project site. 
 

(d) Parking — The Project has provided 36 off-street parking spaces consistent with 
the “Warehouse and Distribution” parking standards specified in the Development Code, which requires 
one space for each 1,000 square feet of gross floor area (GFA) for the first 20,000 square feet, plus one 
space for each 2,000 square feet of GFA in excess of 20,000 square feet. Additionally, the City’s off-street 
parking and loading standards require that the Project provide a minimum of one tractor trailer parking 
space for each four dock-high loading spaces. One tractor trailer parking space has been provided, meeting 
the minimum requirement for the Project. 
 

(e) Architecture — The proposed building elevations illustrate the type of high-quality 
architecture promoted by the Development Code’s development standards and design guidelines. The 
building will be composed of concrete tilt-up walls that incorporate a contemporary architectural design (see 
Exhibit C—Building Perspective and Exhibits D and E—Building Elevations, attached). The proposed 
building design incorporates articulation in the building footprint, incorporating a combination of recessed 
and popped-out wall areas, and articulation in the building parapet/roof line, which serves to accentuate the 
building’s entries and breaks up large expanses of building wall. To accent the building design, the following 
materials, finishes, and fixtures have been incorporated into the design of the building: 
 

 Painted finishes incorporating color blocking 
 Horizontal and vertical reveal lines 
 Recessed windows and wall panels at key locations  
 Form liner treatments on certain wall panels walls  
 Storefront aluminum canopies with metallic silver finish to match the building fascia 
 Double glazed windows with a clear anodized mullion system 
 Aluminum mullions and spandrel glass window insets 
 Extensive use of glazing at office areas and corner elements 

 
(f) Landscaping — The Project proposes an 18.4 percent landscape coverage, 

exceeding the 15 percent minimum landscape coverage requirement of the Development Code for corner 
lots located within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district. The landscape pallet for the project incorporates 
a mix of 24-, 36- and 48-inch box accent and shade trees, including Canary Island Pine, Mondell Pine, 
Chinese Pistache, Western Redbud, and Coastal Live Oak, along with a variety of shrubs and groundcovers 
(see Exhibit E—Landscape Plan). Furthermore, an outdoor employee break area will be provided on the 
south side of the building. Access to the employee break area will be provided by a wrought iron gate, 
located on the building’s east elevation. The area will feature a shade tree, a trellis with vine treatment, and 
a trellis structure over the table and chairs (see Exhibit F—Employee Break Area Perspective View, 
attached). 
 

(g) Utilities (drainage, sewer) — Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to 
serve the project. Additionally, the Applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality Management Plan 
(PWQMP), which establishes the project’s compliance with storm water discharge/water quality 
requirements. The PWQMP includes site design measures that capture runoff and pollutant transport by 
minimizing impervious surfaces, and maximizes low impact development (LID) best management practices 
(BMPs), such as retention and infiltration, biotreatment, and evapotranspiration. The PWQMP proposes a 
vegetated swales designed to accept runoff from building roofs, parking lots and project roadways, which 
lead to an underground stormwater infiltration system. Any overflow drainage will be conveyed to the 
surrounding streets. 
 

Item E - 2 of 40



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-043 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 3 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on August 19, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record for 
the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written 
and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1)  The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, Infill Development Projects) of the CEQA 
Guidelines, which consists of projects characterized as infill development, meeting the following conditions: 
 

Item E - 3 of 40



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-043 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

 The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general 
plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations; 

 The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no more than five acres, 
and is substantially surrounded by urban uses; 

 The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened species; 
 Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air 

quality, or water quality; and 
 The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. 

 
(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set 

forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the BP (Business Park) land 
use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district. The development 
standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is 
consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City 
Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 

Item E - 4 of 40



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-043 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the IL (Light 
Industrial) zoning district, as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, 
number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and 
obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district, which 
is where the project is located, are maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or 
general welfare; [iii] the project will not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will 
be in harmony with the area in which it is located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, 
City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Development Code that are applicable to the proposed Project, including 
building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading 
spaces, parking lot dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and fences 
and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to the IL (Light 
Industrial) zoning district. As a result of this review, the Development Advisory Board has determined that 
the Project, when implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the 
development standards and guidelines described in the Development Code. 
 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of August 2019. 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chair 

Item E - 5 of 40



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-043 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

 
Exhibit A—PROJECT LOCATION 

 

  

Item E - 6 of 40



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-043 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

 
Exhibit B—SITE PLAN 

 

Item E - 7 of 40



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-043 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit C—BUILDING PERSPECTIVE 
 

 
 

Southeast Corner View of the Building & Office Entrance 
  

Item E - 8 of 40



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-043 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 

 
Exhibit C—BUILDING ELEVATIONS 

 

 
  

Item E - 9 of 40



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-043 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit D—BUILDING ELEVATIONS 
 

  

Item E - 10 of 40



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-043 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 11 

Exhibit E—LANDSCAPE PLAN 
 

 
  

Item E - 11 of 40



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-043 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 12 

Exhibit F—EMPLOYEE BREAK AREA PERSPECTIVE VIEW 
 

 

Item E - 12 of 40



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV18-043 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 1—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item E - 13 of 40



      
 
Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 
 
File No: PDEV18-043 
 
Related Files: None 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan to construct one 51,533-square foot industrial building on 
2.05 acres of land located at 508 South Palmetto Avenue, within the IL (Light Industrial) zoning district 
(APNs: 1011-193-04 and 1011-193-03); submitted by State Street Ontario OZ Properties, LLC. 
 
Prepared By: Denny D. Chen, Associate Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2424 (direct) 
Email: dchen@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item E - 14 of 40



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV18-043 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been 
approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(c) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation 
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be 
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement 
of the changes. 

 
(d) Any dead or missing landscaping shall be replaced and a sprinkler system shall 

be installed that is set to a timer. 
 

(e) Outside plaza areas, in front of the office pods, shall feature decorative color 
paving. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced color pavement 
treatment. The enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, to the first 
intersecting drive aisle or parking space. 

 
(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street parking 

and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of 
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking. 

 
(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be 

provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained 
in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

 
(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the 

physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law 
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 

 
(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 

facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current regulations 
contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). 
 
  

Item E - 15 of 40



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV18-043 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 

2.6 Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas. 
 

(a) Loading facilities shall be designed and constructed pursuant to Development 
Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

(b) Areas designated for off-street parking, loading, and vehicular circulation and 
maneuvering, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of materials or equipment. 
 

(c) Outdoor loading and storage areas, and loading doors, shall be screened from 
public view pursuant to the requirements of Development Code Paragraph 6.02.025.A.2 (Screening of 
Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas, and Loading Doors) Et Seq. 
 

(d) Outdoor loading and storage areas shall be provided with gates that are view-
obstructing by one of the following methods: 
 

(i) Construct gates with a perforated metal sheet affixed to the inside of the 
gate surface (50 percent screen); or 

(ii) Construct gates with minimum one-inch square tube steel pickets spaced 
at maximum 2-inches apart. 
 

(e) The minimum gate height for screen wall openings shall be established based 
upon the corresponding wall height, as follows: 
 

Screen Wall Height Minimum Gate Height 

14 feet: 10 feet 

12 feet: 9 feet 

10 feet: 8 feet 

8 feet: 8 feet 

6 feet: 6 feet 
 

2.7 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting 
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section 
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking 
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell 
switch. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or 
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 

 
(c) Wall packs will not be allowed within the public view areas. All fixtures shall be 

decorative. Cut sheets shall be submitted to Planning during plan check review. 
 

(d) Decorative light fixtures shall be used on the building to match the proposed 
architectural style. 
 
  

Item E - 16 of 40



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV18-043 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

2.8 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. 
 

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and 
all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by parapet walls or roof screens 
that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the building architecture. 

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers, 
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or 
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls. 
 

2.9 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario 
Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

2.10 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development 
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). 
 

2.11 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not 
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public 
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.12 Environmental Review.  
 

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated 
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines, 
meeting the following conditions: 
 

(i) The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and 
all applicable general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations; 

(ii) The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no 
more than five acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses; 

(iii) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or 
threatened species; 

(iv) Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to 
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and 

(v) The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and 
public services. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.13 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of 
Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

Item E - 17 of 40



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV18-043 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 

2.14 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
“Clerk of the Board of Supervisors,” along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.15 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) The proposed decorative canopy over the office entrance (South Elevation) shall 
project a minimum of 6 feet from the building face. The canopy on the East Elevation shall project a 
minimum of 4 feet from the building face. 
 

(b) A 14-foot tall decorative wall (concrete tilt-up or decorative masonry block) with 
view-obstructing gates shall be constructed along the west, east, and south sides of the truck loading area 
to fully screen all roll-up doors, trucks and trailers from public view. Applicant shall work with staff during 
the plan check process to finalize the screen wall and gate designs. 
 

(c) Building roof projections must also have returns of a minimum length of 6-feet, to 
avoid a false front/unfinished appearance. Applicant shall work with staff during plan check process to 
finalize the minimum length of the roof returns. 

 
(d) Truck trailers shall utilize only the designated area the dock-high loading area for 

parking. Truck trailers shall not be parked within areas designated for automobile parking or within truck 
maneuvering areas. 
 

Item E - 18 of 40



Item E - 19 of 40



Item E - 20 of 40



Item E - 21 of 40



Item E - 22 of 40



Item E - 23 of 40



Item E - 24 of 40



Item E - 25 of 40



Item E - 26 of 40



Item E - 27 of 40



Item E - 28 of 40



Item E - 29 of 40



Item E - 30 of 40



Item E - 31 of 40



Item E - 32 of 40



Item E - 33 of 40



Item E - 34 of 40



Item E - 35 of 40



Item E - 36 of 40



Item E - 37 of 40



Item E - 38 of 40



Item E - 39 of 40



Item E - 40 of 40



Page 1 

Development Advisory Board Decision 
August 19, 2019 

DECISION NO.: [Insert Decision #] 

FILE NO.: PDEV19-007 

RELATED FILE: None 

DESCRIPTION: A Development Plan to construct a 14,656-square foot industrial building on 0.84 
acres of land located at 1166 South Mildred Avenue, within the IG (General Industrial) zoning district; (APN: 
0113-351-09); submitted by MCI Properties, Inc.  

  Part I—BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

MCI PROPERTIES, INC, (herein after referred to as “Applicant”) has filed an application requesting 
Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV19-007, as described in the subject of this Decision (herein after 
referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

(1) Project Setting: The project site is comprised of 0.84 acres of land generally located on
the west side of Mildred Avenue, approximately 440 feet north of Acacia Street, at 166 South Mildred 
Avenue, and is depicted in Exhibit A—Aerial Photograph, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan and 
zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use General Plan 
Designation Zoning Designation Specific Plan 

Land Use 

Site: Vacant Land Industrial IG (General Industrial) N/A 

North: Industrial Building Industrial IG (General Industrial) N/A 

South: Socal Transportation/ 
Auto Auction Facility Industrial IG (General Industrial) N/A 

East: Industrial Building Industrial IG (General Industrial) N/A 

West: General Contractor’s 
Yard BP (Business Park) SP (Grove Avenue 

Specific Plan) Business Park 

(2) Project Description:

(a) Background — The applicant is requesting Development Plan approval to
construct a 14,656-square foot industrial building on the above-described project site, with a floor area ratio 
of 0.40 The project site is relatively long and narrow, having a width of 113 feet and a depth of 321 feet. 
The proposed building is oriented east to west, with the front of the building facing east, toward Mildred 
Avenue and north, toward the site entrance and visitor parking area. 

(b) Site Design/Building Layout — The proposed building will be setback 28 feet from
the front (Mildred Avenue) property line, 29 feet from the north side property line, and 102 feet from the rear 
(west) property line. Zero setback is proposed on the south side property line. The 14,656-square foot 
building incorporates 12,191 square feet of warehouse space and 2,465 square feet of office spaces, 1,217 
square feet of which will be in a second floor mezzanine area located above the first floor office area. 

Item F - 1 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-007 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 2 

 
(c) Site Access and Circulation — Access to Mildred Avenue is provided at a single 

point located at the northeast corner of the site, connecting to a single circulation spine through the site, 
which parallels the north property line. Two off-street parking areas provided, including a visitor parking 
area as you enter the site from Mildred Avenue, and a second area at the rear of the site for employee 
parking. Additionally, an at-grade loading door is accessed from the rear of the site (see Exhibit B—Site 
Plan, attached). 

 
(d) Parking — The Project has provided 19 off-street parking spaces consistent with 

the “Warehouse and Distribution” parking standards specified in the Development Code, which requires 
one space for each 1,000 square feet of gross floor area (GFA) for the first 20,000 square feet, plus one 
space for each 2,000 square feet of GFA in excess of 20,000 square feet, plus required parking for offices 
when exceeding 10 percent of the building GFA (as summarized in the table below). Additionally, for 
industrial projects, the City’s off-street parking and loading standards require that a minimum of one tractor 
trailer parking space must be provided for each four dock-high loading spaces. No dock-high loading is 
proposed; therefore, no tractor trailer parking spaces are required. 
 

Off-Street Parking Summary 

Use Building 
Area Required Parking Ratio Spaces 

Required 
Spaces 

Provided 

Warehouse/Distribution 
(includes 10% office) 13,657 SF 

One space for each 1,000 SF of floor area for 
the first 20,000 SF, plus one space each 
2,000 SF of floor area thereafter 

14 14 

Offices (area greater 
than 10% GFA) 999 SF offices when exceeding 10 percent of the 

building GFA 4 5 

TOTAL 14, 656 SF  18 19 
 

(e) Architecture — The proposed building elevations illustrate the type of high-quality 
architecture promoted by the Development Code’s development standards and design guidelines. The 
building will be composed of concrete tilt-up walls that incorporate a contemporary architectural design (see 
Exhibit C—Building Elevations, attached). The proposed building design incorporates articulation in the 
building footprint, incorporating a combination of recessed and popped-out wall areas, and articulation in 
the building parapet/roof line, which serves to accentuate the building’s entries and breaks up large 
expanses of building wall. To accent the building design, the following materials, finishes, and fixtures have 
been incorporated into the design of the building: 
 

 Painted finishes incorporating color blocking 
 Horizontal and vertical reveal lines 
 24-inch wide Alucobond metal clad beams at the front, side, and rear of the building 
 Multiple horizontal reveals on panel walls at key locations 
 Double glazed windows with a brushed aluminum storefront mullion system 
 Extensive use of glazing along the front, rear, and sides of the building 
 Decorative metal, exterior canopies on the east, west, and north elevations 

 
(f) Landscaping — The Project proposes 15.8 percent landscape coverage, 

exceeding the 10 percent minimum landscape coverage requirements of the Development Code. The 
landscape pallet for the Project incorporates a combination of 24-, 36- and 48-box accent and shade trees, 
including Holly Oak, Camphor, and True Green Elm trees, along with a variety of shrubs and ground covers 
(see Exhibit D—Conceptual Landscape Plan). 
 

Item F - 2 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-007 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 3 

(g) Utilities (drainage, sewer) — Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to 
serve the project. Additionally, the Applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality Management Plan 
(PWQMP), which establishes the project’s compliance with storm water discharge/water quality 
requirements. The PWQMP includes site design measures that capture runoff and pollutant transport by 
minimizing impervious surfaces, and maximizes low impact development (LID) best management practices 
(BMPs), such as retention and infiltration, biotreatment, and evapotranspiration. The PWQMP proposes a 
vegetated swales designed to accept runoff from building roofs, parking lots and project roadways, which 
lead to detention basins at each end of the site, for stormwater infiltration. Any overflow drainage will be 
conveyed to the storm drain in Mildred Avenue. 
 

Part II—RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a project pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption (listed in CEQA 
Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the application of that categorical exemption 
is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the Development 
Advisory Board (“DAB”) the responsibility and authority to review and make recommendation to the 
Planning Commission on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the opportunity to review 
and comment on the Application, and no comments were received opposing the proposed development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as prescribed in Government Code 
Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that development projects must be consistent with the Housing 
Element, if upon consideration of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and 
policies of the Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport, 
which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and is 
subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), which applies only to jurisdictions within San Bernardino County, 
and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future airport 
activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) prescribes the 
manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing procedures to be followed, and all such 
notifications and procedures have been completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on August 19, 2019, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing on the 
Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 

Part III—THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED by the Development Advisory 
Board of the City of Ontario, as follows: 
 

Item F - 3 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-007 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 4 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending body for the 
Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained in the administrative record for 
the Project. Based upon the facts and information contained in the administrative record, including all written 
and oral evidence presented to the DAB, the DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, Infill Development Projects) of the CEQA 
Guidelines, which consists of projects characterized as infill development, meeting the following conditions: 
 

 The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable general 
plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations 

 The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no more than five acres, 
and is substantially surrounded by urban uses 

 The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened species 
 Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air 

quality, or water quality 
 The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services 

 
(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set 

forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the DAB. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of California 
Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, as the recommending body 
for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and information contained in the Application and 
supporting documentation, at the time of Project implementation, the project is consistent with the Housing 
Element of the Policy Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one of 
the properties in the Available Land Inventory contained in Table A-3 (Available Land by Planning Area) of 
the Housing Element Technical Report Appendix. 
 

SECTION 3: Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”) 
Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires 
that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth 
in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario 
approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use Compatibility Plan (“ALUCP”), 
establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport (“ONT”), which encompasses lands 
within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and 
development within the Airport Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and 
overflight impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the DAB 
has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the Application and supporting 
documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) 
and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP 
Map 2-5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial evidence presented 
to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the specific findings set forth in Sections 1 
through 4, above, the DAB hereby concludes as follows: 
 

Item F - 4 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-007 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 5 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the Industrial land use district 
of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the IG (General Industrial) zoning district. The development 
standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is 
consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City 
Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the project will contribute to the establishment of “[a] 
dynamic, progressive city containing distinct neighborhoods and districts that foster a positive sense of 
identity and belonging among residents, visitors, and businesses” (Goal CD1). Furthermore, the project will 
promote the City’s policy to “take actions that are consistent with the City being a leading urban center in 
Southern California while recognizing the diverse character of our existing viable neighborhoods” (Policy 
CD1-1); and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation to 
location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint identified 
on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The Project has been 
designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario Development Code and the IG (General 
Industrial) zoning district, as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, building height, 
number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site landscaping, and fences, walls and 
obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the project and the minimum safeguards necessary to protect 
the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the proposed project. The 
Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, 
which have been established to ensure that: [i] the purposes of the IG (General Industrial) zoning district 
are maintained; [ii] the project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the project 
will not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the project will be in harmony with the area in 
which it is located; and [v] the project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council Priorities and 
Policy Plan components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or planned unit 
development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with the general development 
standards and guidelines of the Development Code, including the IG (General Industrial) zoning district 
standards that are applicable to the proposed Project, including building intensity, building and parking 
setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading spaces, parking lot dimensions, design 
and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and fences and walls, as-well-as those development 
standards and guidelines specifically related to the IG (General Industrial) zoning district. As a result of this 
review, the Development Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in conjunction 
with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the development standards and guidelines described 
in the Development Code. 
 

SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and conclusions 
set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby recommends the Planning Commission 
APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Department reports included 
as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this 
approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, 
and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

Item F - 5 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-007 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 6 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute the record 
of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the City of Ontario City Hall, 303 
East “B” Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for these records is the City Clerk of the City of 
Ontario. The records are available for inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of August 2019. 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chair

Item F - 6 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-007 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 7 

 
Exhibit A—AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH 

 

 
 

Item F - 7 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-007 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 8 

Exhibit B—SITE PLAN

Item F - 8 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-007 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 9 

Exhibit C—BUILDING ELEVATIONS  

East (Front) Elevation 

West (Rear) Elevation 

Item F - 9 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-007 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 10 

Exhibit C—BUILDING ELEVATIONS (continued)  

North (Right Side) Elevation 

South (Left Side) Elevation 

Item F - 10 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-007 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 11 

Exhibit D—CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN 

Item F - 11 of 38



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV19-007 
August 19, 2019 
 
 

Page 12 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 1—Departmental Conditions of Approval 
 

(Departmental conditions of approval follow this page) 

Item F - 12 of 38



      
 
Meeting Date: August 19, 2019 
 
File No: PDEV19-007 
 
Related Files: None 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan to construct a 14,656-square foot industrial building on 0.84 
acres of land located at 1166 South Mildred Avenue, within the IG (General Industrial) zoning district; (APN: 
0113-351-09); submitted by MCI Properties, Inc.  
 
Prepared By: Denny D. Chen, Associate Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2424 (direct) 
Email: dchen@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable to the 
above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of approval listed 
below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions for New 
Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy of the Standard 
Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning Department or City Clerk/Records 
Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New Development 
identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following special conditions of 
approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following the 
effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is commenced, 
and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Director. 
This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified herein, or any other departmental 
conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements - The Project shall comply with the following general requirements: 
 

(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, including, but 
not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape and irrigation, grading, 
utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with the approved entitlement plans 
on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved plans on file 
with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be included 
in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project construction. 

Planning Department 
Land Development Division 

Conditions of Approval 

City of Ontario 
Planning Department 
303 East B Street 
Ontario, California 91764 
Phone: 909.395.2036 
Fax: 909.395.2420 

Item F - 13 of 38



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-007 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 

2.3 Landscaping 
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and irrigation 
systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping). 
 

(b) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 (Landscaping) have been 
approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(c) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction Documentation 
Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation system design, shall be 
resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning Division, prior to the commencement 
of the changes. 

 
(d) Any dead or missing landscaping shall be replaced and a sprinkler system shall 

be installed that is set to a timer. 
 

(e) Outside plaza areas, in front of the office pods, shall feature decorative color 
paving. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences - All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements of 
Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and lighting 
requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced color pavement 
treatment. The enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, to the first 
intersecting drive aisle or parking space. 

 
(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street parking 

and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of 
materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than parking. 

 
(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces shall be 

provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces shall be maintained 
in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

 
(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use by the 

physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations contained in State law 
(CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 

 
(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 

facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current regulations 
contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). 
 

2.6 Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas 
 

(a) Loading facilities shall be designed and constructed pursuant to Development 
Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and Loading). 
 

Item F - 14 of 38



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-007 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 

(b) Areas designated for off-street parking, loading, and vehicular circulation and 
maneuvering, shall not be used for the outdoor storage of materials or equipment. 
 

(c) Outdoor loading and storage areas, and loading doors, shall be screened from 
public view pursuant to the requirements of Development Code Paragraph 6.02.025.A.2 (Screening of 
Outdoor Loading and Storage Areas, and Loading Doors) Et Seq. 
 

(d) Outdoor loading and storage areas shall be provided with gates that are view-
obstructing by one of the following methods: 
 

(i) Construct gates with a perforated metal sheet affixed to the inside of the 
gate surface (50 percent screen); or 

 
(ii) Construct gates with minimum one-inch square tube steel pickets spaced 

at maximum 2-inches apart. 
 

(e) The minimum gate height for screen wall openings shall be established based 
upon the corresponding wall height, as follows: 
 

Screen Wall Height Minimum Gate Height 

14 feet: 10 feet 

12 feet: 9 feet 

10 feet: 8 feet 

8 feet: 8 feet 

6 feet: 6 feet 
 

2.7 Site Lighting 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security lighting 
pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building Provisions) and Section 
4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to confine emitted light to the parking 
areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, daily, and shall be operated by a photocell 
switch. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, or 
lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

(c) Wall packs will not be allowed within the public view areas. All fixtures shall be 
decorative. Cut sheets shall be submitted to Planning during plan check review. 
 

(d) Decorative light fixtures shall be used on the building to match the proposed 
architectural style. 
 

2.8 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment 
 

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning equipment, and 
all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by parapet walls or roof screens 
that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the building architecture.  

Item F - 15 of 38



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-007 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, transformers, 
HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view from a public street, or 
adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative low garden walls. 

 
2.9 Security Standards - The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of Ontario 

Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

2.10 Signs - All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario Development 
Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). 
 

2.11 Sound Attenuation - The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so as not 
to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code Title 5 (Public 
Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.12 Environmental Review  
 

(a) The proposed project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines promulgated 
thereunder, pursuant to Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines, 
meeting the following conditions: 
 

(i) The Project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and 
all applicable general plan policies, as well as the applicable zoning designation and regulations; 

 
(ii) The proposed development occurs within city limits, on a project site of no 

more than five acres, and is substantially surrounded by urban uses; 
 
(iii) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or 

threatened species; 
 
(iv) Approval of the Project will not result in any significant effects relating to 

traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and 
 
(v) The Project site can be adequately served by all required utilities and 

public services. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during project grading/excavation/construction 
activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required investigation is completed by the County Coroner 
and Native American consultation has been completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the resource is 
determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a qualified archeologist or 
paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other appropriate measures 
implemented. 
 

2.13 Indemnification - The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, the 
City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City 
of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of 
Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer. The City of 
Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario 
shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 
 

Item F - 16 of 38



Planning Department; Land Development Division: Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV19-007 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 

2.14 Additional Fees 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Determination 
(NOD) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, made 
payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San Bernardino County 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Failure to provide said fee within the time 
specified may result in a 180-day extension to the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final building 
permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the rate established 
by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.15 Additional Requirements 
 

(a) Where changes in parapet height occur, a return into the building shall be provided, 
for a distance of at least 6 feet, so that the thickness of the wall panel cannot be observed or readily 
discerned by the public. 
 

Item F - 17 of 38



Item F - 18 of 38



Item F - 19 of 38



Item F - 20 of 38



Item F - 21 of 38



Item F - 22 of 38



Item F - 23 of 38



Item F - 24 of 38



Item F - 25 of 38



Item F - 26 of 38



Item F - 27 of 38



Item F - 28 of 38



Item F - 29 of 38



Item F - 30 of 38



Item F - 31 of 38



Item F - 32 of 38



Item F - 33 of 38



Item F - 34 of 38



Item F - 35 of 38



Item F - 36 of 38



Item F - 37 of 38



Item F - 38 of 38


	AGENDA
	August 19, 2019
	Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Development Agency
	John P. Andrews, Executive Director, Economic Development
	Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department

	20190819_Item A-Minutes.pdf
	BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT
	STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

	20190819_Item B-PMTT18-002.pdf
	20190819 File No. PMTT18-002_TTM 20157_A Map - DAB^03_COA depts.pdf
	ENG TM-20157 Conditions of Approval
	PMTT18-002 landscape  Memo Rev 1
	PMTT18-002 landscape Rev 1
	CD2018-015_PMTT18-002
	PMTT18-002 Fire Conditions 02-12-18
	PMTT18-002 Bldg Standard COA_02-07-18
	PMTT18-002 - IT Standard COA_02-16-18
	PMTT18-002_PD No Comments_02-14-18


	20190819_Item C-PMTT18-003, PMTT18-004, PMTT18-005.pdf
	20190819 File No. PMTT18-003_TTM 20158_B Map 1 - DAB^03_COA depts.pdf
	ENG TM-20158 Conditions of Approval
	PMTT18-003 landscape memo Rev 2
	PMTT18-003 landscape Rev 2
	CD2018-016_PMTT18-003
	PMTT18-003 Fire Conditions 02-12-18
	PMTT18-003 - IT Standard COA_02-16-18
	PMTT18-003 Bldg Standard COA_02-07-18

	20190819 File No. PMTT18-004_TTM 20159_B Map 2 - DAB^06_COA depts.pdf
	ENG TM-20159 Conditiona of Approval
	CD2018-014_PMTT18-004
	PMTT18-004 landscape memo Rev 2
	PMTT18-004 landscape rev 2
	PMTT18-004 Fire Conditions 02-12-18
	PMTT18-004 Bldg Standard COA_02-07-18
	PMTT18-004 PD No Comments_02-14-18
	PMTT18-004 - IT Standard COA_02-16-18

	20190819 File No. PMTT18-005_TTM 20160_B Map 3 - DAB^09_COA depts.pdf
	ENG TM-20160 Conditions of Approval
	PMTT18-005 landscape memo Rev 3
	PMTT18-005 landscape Rev 3
	CD2018-013_PMTT18-005
	PMTT18-005 Fire COAs 02-12-18
	PMTT18-005 Bldg Standard COA_02-07-18
	PMTT18-005 PD No Comments_02-14-18
	PMTT18-005 - IT Standard COA_02-16-18





